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.December 28, 2007

Independent Auditor's Report

The Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana 70776

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the

City of St. Gabriel
St. Gabriel, Louisiana

as of and for the year ended June 30, 2007, which collectively comprise the City's basic f inancial statements
as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of St. Gabriel,
Louisiana's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these f inancia l statements based on our
aud i t .

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements arc free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation, We believe lhat our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opin ion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Si. Gabriel, Louisiana, as of June 30,2007, and the respective changes
in f inancia l position and cash flows, where applicable, for the year then ended in conformity wi th accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



In accordance with Government Auditing $lcimlards> we have also issued our report dated December 28,
2007, on our consideration of the City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 6 through 14
and 45 through 50, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but arc supplementary information
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain
limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it,

Our and it was conducted for the purpose of form ing an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana's, basic financial statements. The combining and individual non-
major fund financial statements, and statistical tables are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual non-major fund financial
statements have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and , in our opinion, arc fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken
as a whole. The statistical tables have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Yours truly.



City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Management's Discussion and Analysis

This analysis of the City of St. Gabriel 's financial performance provides an overview of the City's financial activities
for (he fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus
on the current year's act iv i t ies , resulting changes, and currently known facts.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

In 2007, the City of St. Gabriel experienced a customary year f inancia l ly as governmental revenues decreased
signif icant ly relative to prior years, as did the governmental expenditures. Certain funds continued to experience
operating deficits that are not sustainable and the priorities of operating and infrastructure needs and obligations are
greater than avai lable resources. Accordingly, there must be a logical and thoughtful a l ignment of the City's resources
to communi ty needs,

The major f inancia l h ighl ights for 2007 are as follows:

• Assets of the City's pr imary government exceeded its l i ab i l i t i e s at the close of the year by approximately $9.2
m i l l i o n (net assets). Of this amount, approximately $1.0 mi l l i on (unrestricted net assets) may be used without
restrictions to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

• The primary government's total net assets increased by approximately $240,000 during 2007.

• Governmental activit ies ' net assets increased by $222,000, pr imar i ly the result of property tux revenues, sales tax
revenues and operating grants and contributions.

• Business type total net assets increased by approximately $20,000 primari ly the result of transfers from special
revenue funds.

• As of the end of the year, the primary government's governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $1.2
m i l l i o n a decrease of $214,000 in comparison to the prior year.

Significant aspects of the City's f inancial well being, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2007, are detailed
throughout this analysis.

USING THIS A N N U A L REPORT

Willuheimplenienlafion of Governmental Accounting Standards Board slatemen I No. 34, a government's presentation
of f inancia l statements has greatly changed. The new statements focus on the government as a whole and on major
i n d i v i d u a l funds. Both perspectives allow the reader to address relevant questions, broaden a basis for comparison
from year to year and enhance the City's accountability.

This annua l report consists of a scries of f inancial statements. The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activi t ies (pages 16 and 17) provide information about the act ivi t ies of the City as a whole and present a longer-term
view of the City's finances.

Fund F inanc ia l Statements start on page 18. For governmental act ivi t ies , these statements depict how services were
financed in the short-term as welt as what remains for future spending. Fund Financial Statements also report the
City 's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by providing informat ion about the City's most
s i g n i f i c a n t funds-



City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Management's Discussion and Analysis

Reporting on the City as a Whole

The analysis of the City as a whole begins on page ! 6. The Statement of Net Assets ami the Statement of Activit ies
report information about the City as whole and about its ac t iv i t i es in a way to determine if the City is in better
condition as a result of the year's f inancia l results. These statements include al! assets and liabilit ies using the accrual
basis of account ing which is s i m i l a r to account ing methods used by most private-sector companies. All of the current
year's revenues and expenses; arc taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. Thus, revenues and
expenses arc reported in these statements for some items that w i l l only result in cash Hows in future fiscal periods.

These two statements report the City's net assets and related changes. You can t h i n k of the City's net assets, the
difference between assets and l i a b i l i t i e s , as one way to measure the City's f inancia l health, or financial position. Over
time, increases or decreases in the City's net assets are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or
deter iora t ing. You wi l l need to consider other non-financial factors, however, such as changes in the City's property
and sales tax base and the condi t ion of the City's roads and bu i ld ings , to assess the overall heal th of (he City.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activit ies, we divide the City into two kinds of activities;

Governmental Activities - most of Ihe City's basic services are reported here, including publ ic safely, streets and
san i t a t ion , c u l t u r e and recreation, and general administrat ion. Properly and sales (axes, charges for services, and state
and federal grants finance most of these activities.

Business-type Activities - (he City charges a fee to customers to help it cover cost of certain services it provides. The
City mainta ins a wasfewatcr treatment system and is in the process of renovating this system, which is all reported here.
The shortfall of revenue from th is activity has been funded from sales tax collections.

At June 3 0,2007, the City's net assets were $9.2 mi II ion, of which $1.0 mi l l ion was unrestricted. Restricted net assets
are reported separately to show legal constraints from debt covenants and enab l ing legislation tha i l imi t s the City's
abil i ty to use those net assets for day-to-day operations,

The analys is below of the pr imary government focuses on the net assets and change in net assets of the City's
governmental ac t iv i t ies .

City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2007 and 2006

(In Thousands)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Current and other assets $2,175 $1,864 ($310) ($359) $1,865 $1,505
Capi ta l assets 7.772 7,761 9.129 9.236 16.90 J .1.6.997

Total assets 9.947 9,621 Ml9 8,877 18.766 18,502

Current and other l i a b i l i t i e s 1,303 840 98 109 1,401 949
Long-term l i ab i l i t i e s 4,969 5,388 3.183 3.251 8,152 8.639

Total l i a b i l i t i e s 6,272 6.228 3,281 3J6Q 9,553 9.588

(Continued)



City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Management's Discussion and Analysis

Reporting on the City as a Whole (Continued)

(Continued)
Net Assets

Invested in capi ta l assets,
net ol' related debt

Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Net assets of the Cily's governmental activities increased by approximately 6% or $222, 000 during 2007, Unrestricted
net assets represent the pnit of net assets tha t can be used to finance day-to-day operations without constraints
established by debt covenants, enabl ing legislat ion or other legja! requirements.

Governmental
Activit ies

2007

$2,147
161

1.367

ifiZS

2006

$1,886
243

1,268

3,397

Business-Type
Activities

2007

$5,879
30

(371)

5,538

2006

$5,922
29

(434)

5,517

Total
2007

$8,026
191
996

9.213

2006

$7,808
272
834

8,914

The $1 .4 m i l l i o n in unrestricted net assets of governmental act ivi t ies represents the accumulated results of operations.
It means tha t if we had to pay off all of the debt, we would have $1,4 mi l l ion remaining. The changes in net assets are
discussed later in this analysis.

The net assets of the City's business activities increased approximate ly $21,000 d u r i n g 2007, The City operates
waslewater treatment systems for the City. The primary focus of this ac t iv i ty is to operate on a profitable basis.
However, the City has been required to subsidize these operations wi th sales and use tax collections to e l imina te
operating deficits.

The results of t h i s year's operations for the primary government as a whole as reported in the Statement of Activities,
arc as follows:

City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
•Statement of Activities

Years Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006
(In Thousands)

Revenues
Program revenues

Charges for services
Operating grants and contr ibut ions
Capital grants and contr ibut ions

General revenues
Ad valorem taxes
Sales taxes
Video poker taxes
Other genera! revenues

Total revenues

Governmental
Activities

2007

$600
316

2,058
1 ,73 1

640
260

5,605

2006

$2,308
146

2/187
697
597
197

6.432

Business-Type
Activities Total

2007

$ J 3 1

82

6
219

2006 2007

$127 $731
316

1 54 82

2,058
1.731

640
1 266

282 5.824

2006

$2,435
146
154

2,487
697
597
198

6,714

(Continued)



City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Management's Discussion and Analysis

Reporting on the City as a Whole (Continued)

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities Total

2007

$1,447
1,129

783
951

299

2006 2007

$1,560
1,195
1,314

913

2007

$973 $1.005
223

4,609 5,205

221 527

973

(754)
775

21

1,005

(723)
700

$1,447
1,129

783
951
973
299

5,582 6,210

2006

$1,560
1,195

'913
1,005

223

242 504

504

3,397
57

3,454

3.675

2,870

2.870

3,397

5,517

5JLL2

5,538

5,540

5.540

5,517

8,914
57

8,971

9.213

8,410

8,410

8,9 hi

(Continued)
Functions/Programs Expenses

General government
Public safety
Streets and sanitation
Cul ture and recreation
Wastewater treatment
Interest on long-term debt

Total expenses

Increase in net assets before transfers
Transfers

Increase (decrease) in net assets

Net Assets, beginning of year,
as previously reported

Prior period adjustments

Net Assets, as restated

Net Assets, end of year

The increase in net assets of $242,000 is due ma in ly to an increase in sales tax revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to ma in ta in control over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or objectives. Tradit ional users of governmental financial statements wil l find the fund financial
statements presentation more fami l ia r . The focus is now on major funds, rather than generic fund types.

Reporting the City's Most Significant Funds

The analysis of the City's major funds begins on page 18 with the fund financial statements that provide detailed
information about the most significant funds, not the City as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by
State law or by bond covenants. However, the City Council establishes other funds to control and manage money for
particular purposes or meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other money. The City's two
kinds of funds, governmental and proprietary, use different accounting approaches,

Governmental Funds - governmental funds arc used to account for essentially the same funct ions reported as
governmental ac t iv i t i es in the government-wide f inancial :s ta tements . However, unl ike the-government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements foc-us on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources,
as well as balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Most of the City's basic services are
reported in governmental funds. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual



City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Management's Discussion and Analysis

Reporting the City's Most Significant Funds (Continued)

accounting, which measures cash and all oilier financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental
f u n d f inancia l statements provide a detai led short-term view of (he City 's general government: operations and the basic
services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer f inancia l
resources tha t can be spent in the near future to finance the City's programs. We describe the relationship (or
differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement ot'Net Assets and the Statement of Activities)
and governmental funds in a reconciliation to the f inancial statements, The governmental major funds (Exhibits A-2
and A-4) presentation is presented using the modified accrual basis and focuses on the major funds of the City. Finally,,
combining f inancial statements of the non-major funds can be found in the Combining Non-major Fund Statements
that follow the basic f inancial statements.

Proprietary Funds - when the City charges customers for the services it provides, whether to outside customers or
to other units of the City, these services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in
the same way tha t all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activit ies. In fact, the
City's enterprise funds are the same as the business-type activit ies we report in the government-wide statements but
provide more detail and add i t iona l information, such as cash flows, for proprietary funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements - the notes provide addi t ional information that is essential to a fu l l understanding
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund f inanc ia l statements. The- notes to the financial statements are
a required part of the basic f inancial statements and can be found in Exhib i t A-9.

Other Information - in addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain required supplementary information concerning original and final budgetary comparisons to actual results for
the year for the City's major funds, See Exhibit B through B-4.

Certain supplementary f inancial information can be found in Exhibits C through D-9, These schedules and the
statistical informat ion (pages 81 through S6) are included for additional information and analysis and do not constitute
a pad of the basic f inancial statements.

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

The general government operations of the City are accounted for in the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt
Service Fund and Capital Project Funds. The focus of these funds, as noted earlier, is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's
f inancing requirements. The following is a summary of general governmental operations for 2007 by fund type,

.June 30.2007 (in thousands)
Special Debt Capital

General Revenue Service Project
Fund Funds Funds Funds Total Total

Revenues and transfers $3/117 $3,832 $330 $7,579 $8,295
Expenditures and transfers 3.840 3,561 322 $71 7,794 7,439

Surplus (defici t) (423} 271 8 111} 1215) 856

(Continued)
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General
Fund

$760

(200)

560

137

Special
Revenue
Funds

$643

57

700

971

Debt
Service
Funds

$6

6

14

Capital
Project
Funds

$139

139

68

Total

$1,548

(143)

1 .405

U.90

Total

$692

692

1.548

City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Management's Discussion and Analysis

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds (Continued)

June 30, 2007 fin thousands')

Fund Balance
June 30, 2006, as previously reported

Prior period adjustments

.11)11030,2006, as restated

June 30,2007

The City's governmental funds experienced a deficit of $215,000 dur ing 2007 that primarily related to its Special
Revenue Funds. At year end, fund balances were approximately $1,190,000 which is unrestricted and available for
u t i l i za t ion at the City's discretion.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the fiscal year, the General Fund balance was
approximately $ 137,000 compared to the fund balance of $560,000 at 2006. The decrease in fund balance resulted
from the operating deficit of $423,000, which is less than the $470,000 def ic i t budgeted by the City. This variation
is p r imar i ly due to the budgeted revenues exceeding expectations

The City's other major funds are the Acl Valorem 2 Tax Fund, and the Civic Center Operating Fund. The change to
the Civic Center Operating Fund was approximately $40,000. A deficit was reported in this fund p r imar i ly due to the
increased social and recreational services expenditures. Addi t ional ly , the Ad Valorem 2 Tax Fund collections incurred
a deficit of $234,000 due to transfers out of other funds.

Sources of governmental revenues, excluding transfers, are summarized below.

(In Thousands)
2007_ 2006

Revenue Percent Revenue Percent
Sources of Revenue

Taxes $3,834 68% $3,225 51%
Intergovernmental 1,293 23% 2,597
Licenses and permits 169 3% 197
Miscellaneous 309 6% 413

Total revenue 5,605. j 00% 6,432 100%

Revenues of the primary government for general governmental fund types for 2007 totaled $5.6 mil l ion, compared with
$6.4 m i l l i o n tor the previous year, representing a $826,2 14 or 1 3% decrease. The decrease in revenue of $826,2 14 is
pr imar i ly due to decreases in intergovernmental revenue. As noted above, the City's ac t iv i t i e s are largely supported
by tax revenues, which represent 68% of total governmental resources.



City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Management's Discussion and Analysis

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds (Continued)

Expenditures of the pr imary government decreased $166,000 in 2007. Expenditures for general governmental
functions for each major function are summarized in the- following table.

(In Thousands)
2007 2006

Expenditure Percent Expenditure Percent
Function

General government $ 1,420 28% $1,551 29%
Publ ic safety 1,050 21% 1,092 21%
Streets and sani tat ion 1,032 20% 1,278 24%
Social and recreational services 819 16% 875 17%
Debt service 7K9 15% 480 9%

5.110 100% 5,276

The largest decrease in spending occurred in capital outlay of $359,000 or 23%, which is due to the absence of funds
received from FEMA in the prior year. The largest increase in spending occurred in general government of $289,000
or 60%, pr imar i ly related to addit ional debt payments made by the City. The City experienced an increase in economic
development expenditures of approximately $250,000 which was due to an economic grant received from the State
of Louisiana. Addi t ional ly , the City experienced a decrease in capital outlay expenditures of approximately $163,000
which was the result of the completion of the Civic Center.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Over the course of the year, the City's General Fund budget was amended on several occasions. The amendment of
operating and capital budgets is a customary practice of the City and is reflective of the change that occurs wi th
f inancial related matters throughout the fiscal year. The most significant change during 2007 was as follows:

• To reflect increased intergovernmental revenues.
• To reflect decreased tax and t ines revenues.
• To reflect increases in most expenditures.

With these adjustments, the actual charges to appropriations (expenditures) were $98,000 more than the related final
budget appropriat ions of $3.7 m i l l i o n . The most signification negative variance occurred in the City's social and
recreational department, where expenditures were $70,000 more than anticipated expenditures. The primary increases
related to the acquis i t ions of fixed assets,

The City experienced increased expenditures in all departments relat ing to insurance, util i t ies, and fuel expenditures.
In particular, employee heal th and the City's general l i a b i l i t y insurance cots increased. Ris ing fuel costs have impacted
the City relative to the vehicle fuel purchased along wi th City u t i l i t y expenditures.

Final ly , resources avai lable for appropr ia t ion were $2.1 mi l l ion with expenditures appropriated at $3.7 mi l l ion , wi th
the deficit funded by collections from the City's Ad Valorem and Sales Tax Funds. The operating def ic i t in the
General Fund for 2007 was $423,000 and the related fund balance was 1)37,000 at year end.

12



City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Management's Discussion and Analysis

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

At the end of 2007, the City had $16.9 m i l l i o n invested in a broad range of capital assets, inc luding vehicles, tire
equipment, computer equipment, office furni ture , land, buildings, park facil i t ies, roads, and sewer treatment systems.
This amount represents a net decrease of approximately $96,000, or less than 1% over last year.

Capital Assets at year end (in thousands)
Governmental

Activities
2007

$642
4,880

723

1,527

1332

2006

$360
4,960

819

1,622

7.761

Business-Type
Activities

2007

$60

9,069

9J29

2006

$40

9. 1 96

9,236

Total
2007

$702
4,880

723
9,069
1,527

.1 6.90 1

2006

$400
4,960

819
9,196
1 ,622

16.997

I .and
Buildings
Equipment and vehicles
Sewer treatment plants
Infrastructure

Total assets, net of depreciation

Debt

At year end, the City had $8,9 m i l l i o n in bonds and notes outstanding versus $9.2 m i l l i o n in 2006, an decrease of
$315,000 as show below.

Balance Balance
June 30. 2006 Additions Deletions June 30,2007

Publ ic improvements
Certificate of Indebtedness
Capital leases
Short-term loans
Revenue bonds

Addi t iona l debt issued du r ing 2007 related p r i m a r i l y to short-term loans used to offset cash shortages un t i l tax revenues
were collected. The City also entered into capital lease agreements relat ing to equipment acquired for the general
government and streets and sanitation departments. The City retired approximately $1.5 mi l l i on in debt dur ing 2007,

The State of Louisiana l imits the amount of general obligation debt that m u n i c i p a l i t i e s can issue to 35 percent of the
assessed value of all taxable property wi th in the City's corporate l imi ts . The City's outstanding general obligation debt
is significantly below this $44 mi l l ion state imposed l imi t . More detailed information about the City's long-term
l i a b i l i t i e s is presented in Note 6 to the financial statements.

$4,737,054
675,000
262,513
200,000

3,314,683

9,189,250

$64,898
1,125,000

1,189,898

$58,040
277,250
154,503
950,000
64,632

1.504,425

$4,679,014
397,750
172,908
375,000

3,250,051

8,874.723



City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Management's Discussion and Analysis

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS

The City's elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2008 budget and tax
rates. One of those factors is the economy. The largest taxpayers in the City are primari ly companies involved in the
oil refining and petrochemical processing sector. These companies are significantly impacted by the increasing cost
of fuel, including natural gas. With the high price of"fuel in recent years, these companies have experienced financial
d i f f icu l ty resulting in reduction of personnel staffing and the rate of plant expansion, if any. As a result, the local
economy has been impacted by (he financial concerns of this major industry in the City.

An important factor affecting the budget is the City ad valorem and sales tax collections that approximate 65% of
budgeted revenue, The City budgeted an increase in total sates tax collections of approximately 3% for 2008.
Addi t iona l ly , the 2008 operating budget expenditures provide for increases in general l i ab i l i ty and other insurance,
employee hea l th and workman\s compensation insurance, retirement system contributions, and approximately 5%
increase in personnel costs. For 2008, revenues are budgeted at $5.3 m i l l i o n while expenditures are expected to be
$5.2 m i l l i o n , If these estimates are reali/ed, the City's budgetary fund balances are expected to increase $146,000 by
the close of 200S.

These indicators were taken into account when adopting the General Fund budget for 2008. Property taxes are
expected to remain constant during 2008 at approximately $2.2 mi l l i on . The taxes are expected to fund operations of
the City's governmental operations, the Civic Center, incUidingdebt service, sewer operations, a housing program and
economic development projects. Licensing fees and other fund ing sources are expected to decrease by approximately
$1.2 m i l l i o n pr imar i ly due 1o the decrease in grant revenue. The City wil l use these revenues to fund programs
currently offered.

Contacting the City's Financial Management

This f inancial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a general
overview of the City's finances and to show accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions regarding
this report or need addi t ional f i n a n c i a l information, contact the City's Finance Office at (225) 642-9600, or write to
Post Office Box 507, St. Gabr ie l , Louisiana 70776.
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City of SI. Gabriel, Louisiana
Statement of Net Assets

Exhibit A
June 30,2007

Primary Government

Assets
Cash and cash equiva len ts
Accounts receivable, net
Internal balances
Due from other governments
Prepaid items
Restricted assets
Capital assets

Non-depreciable
Depreciable, net

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued payables
Accrued interest
Deferred revenue
Long-term payable,?

Due wi th in one year
Due in more than one-year

Total l i a b i l i t i e s

Net Assets
Invested in capi ta l assets, net of related debt
Restricted

Capital projects
Debt service

Unrestricted

Total net assets

Total l i a b i l i t i e s and net assets

Governmental
Activities

$1,345,998
7,551

363,642
433,857
24,199

642324
7,129,703

9,947.274

181 . .847
! 5 0,091
37,606

277,867

655, 141
4.969,531

6.272.083

2,147,355

146,705
14,406

1,366,725

3,675,191

9,947.274

Business-Type
Activities

$266
13,469

(363,642)
9,428

30/416

60,000
9,069,210

8,819,147

12,661
15,784

2,869

67,277
3,182,774

3,281.365

5,879,159

30,4.16

(371.793)

5,537.782

8,819.147

Total

$1,346,264
21,020

443,285
24,199
30,416

702,324
16.198,913

18,766,421

194,508
165,875
37.606

280,736

722,418
8,152,305

9.553,448

8,026,514

177,121
14,406

994.932

9,212.973

18,766.421

The accompanying notes (Hxh ib i t A-9) are an integral part of these financial statements.

16



City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Statement of Activities

Exhibit A-l
Year Ended June 30, 2007

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Program Revenues Oiangcs in Net Assets
Charges Opera t ing Capital Business-

far Gran t and Grants and Governmental Type
Expenses Services Cont r ibut ions Contr ibut ions Activit ies Act ivi t ies Total

Functions/Programs
Primary Government

Governmenta l Activi t ies
General govcmmcnl $1,196,698 $463,430 $184,340 ($548,928) ($548,928)
Public safely 1,128,440 116,923 131,659 (879,858) (879,858)

Streets and sanitation 783,372 (783,372) (783,372)
Culture ami recreation 951,094 20,010 (931,084) (931,084)
Keunomic development 250,160 (250,160) (250.160)
Interest on long-term dcbl 299.064 (299.064) (299.064)

Total governmental ac t iv i t i e s 4.608.828 600,363 315,999 (3..692.466) (3,692.466)

Business-Type Activities
Waste water t reatment facili t ies 973.028 130.678 S81.3-17 ($76 J.003) (761,003)

Total business-type activities 973,028 130.678 81..347 (761,003) (761,003)

Total primary uovcrnmcnl 5,581,856 7 3 i , 0 4 1 _ 315.999 81.347 (3.692.466) (761,003) (4.453.469)

General Revenues
Taxes

Properly 2,058,494 2,058,494
Sales 1,730,497 1.730,497
Video poker 640,480 640,480
Oilier 45,044 45,044

Grams and cont r ibut ions not rcsfriclcd
lo specific programs 165,936 5,283 171,219

Investment earnings 48,658 1,133 49,791
Transfers (to) lion) oilier funds (775.000) 775.000

Total general revenues and transient 3,914,109 781.416 4.695.525

Changes in net tisscis 221,643 20,413 242,056

Net Assets

Beginning of year 3.453.548 5.517.369 8.970,917

3,675.191 5.537.782 9.212.973

The accompanying notes (Exhibit A-9) are an integral part of these f inanc ia l statements.
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City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
Exhibit A-2

June 30, 2007

General

Assets
Cash ami cash equivalents $507;S06
Other receivables 7,551
Due iVoin oilier governments 81,969
Prepaid items 24J99
Due from otlicr funds 170.133

Tola! assets 79I.6J8

Liabili t ies
Aecounls payable 173.536
Accrued expenses 99,856
Due to other lunds 0,358
Deferred revenue
Short-term note payable 375,000

Total l i ab i l i t i es 654.750

Fund Balance
Undcsignaicd

Total fund balance

Total liabilittcs.m.KJ
fund balance 791,658

Ad Civic Center Parish-wide Code Other Total
Valorem 2 Opera t ing Sales and Knforcement ( . lovcrnnH'ntal Governmenta l
Tax Fund f u n d Use.Tiu Grant Fund Funds Funds

$66.976

66.976

66.976

66.975

127,365

10.434

110.931

127,365

$106,123 $334,757

192,005

370,000

668 J 28 334,757

4 I . 2 J 4

30.133
263.<UO

334.757

668,328

668.128

$277.082

85,772

362.854

6.X98
140,000

14,457

161.355

20K499

201.499

$1,345,998
7,551

433,857
24,199

540,133

2.351,738

223.061
108,877
176,491
277.867
375.000

1,161.296

U90.442

1,190.442

668,128 362.854 2.351.738

The accompanying notes (Exh ib i t A-9) are an integral part of these financial statement.
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City of 81, Gabriel, Louisiana
Reconciliation of (he Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

to the .Statement of Net Assets
Exhibi t A-3

June 30, 2007

Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the s ta tement of net
assets are different because;

Total fund balances - governmental funds (Exh ib i t A-2) $1,190,442

Capi ta l assets used in governmental activities are not f inancia l resources
and, therefore, arc not reported in the governmental funds 7,772.027

Kong-term l i ab i l i t i e s (e.g. bonds, leases) arc not due and payable in the
current period and. therefore, arc not reported in the governmental funds.

Accrued interest payable ($37,606)
Bonds and capi ta l lease payable (5,249.672) (5.287,278)

Net: assets of governmental activities (Exhib i t A) 3,675.191

The accompanying notes (Exhib i t A-9) are an integral port of these f inancial statements.
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City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
Exhibit A-4

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Ad Civic Center Parish-Wide Code Other Totul

C.ien era I
Valorem 2 Operat ing Sales and Enforcement Governmental Governmental
Tfix Fund Fund Use.Tax G r a n t Fund Funds Funds

Revenues
Taxes
Intergovernmental
License and permits
Finos
Other

Total revenues

Expendi tu res
General government
Public; safely
Streets mid sani ta t ion
Social and recreational services
Debl service

To till expenditures

Rxcess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

Other F inanc ing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in
Proceeds from debl issuance

Operating transfer out
Tola! fi.nanomii sources fuses)

Rxcess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures and other
financing souree.s (uses)

Fund Balance
Rcgmning of year.

as previously reported

Prior period adjustments

Bep.ivmwy. of year, ivs restated

r,ml of ye;ir

$894,642
879,34]
169,257
116,583
183.963

2.243,786

1,419,883
918.296

1 ,031.703
267,036
202.988

3,839,906

(1.596, 120)

1, 107,940
64,898

1,172.838

(423.2821

760 J 90

(200.000)

560,190

136.908

SI, 200,9 IS $1,232,889
$282,529 5131,659

8,094
1 200.9 18 290,623 1,232.889 1 3 1 ,659

131,659

16,000 501.573
264,144

16,000 765,717 131.659

1,184,918 (475,094) 1.232.889

435,000

(1.410,000) (725.000)
(1 ,4 10.000) 435.000 (725,000)

(225.0X2) (40.094) 507.889

103,765

56,474

292.G5K 157.025 160,239

66.976 116,931 668.128

$.505,586

10
505.596

34,848
321,715
356,563

149. 03 3

365,632

(548.572)
(J82.940)

(33,907)

235,406

201,499

53,834,035
1,293,529

169,257
1 16,583
192,067

5.605,471

1.419,883
1,049,955
1,031,703

819,457
788,847

5,109.845

495,626

1,908,572
64,898

(2.6S3.572)
(710,102)

(214,476)

1,404,918

1 > ! 9A442

The accompanying notes (Bxhihi t A-9) are an integral part of these financial statements.
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City of Si, Gabriel, Louisiana
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
Exhibit A-5

Year Ended June 30, 2007

The change in net assets reported for government;]I act ivi t ies in the statement
of activities is d i f fe ren t because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibi t A-4) ($214.476)

Governmental funds report capita! outlay as expenditures. However, in
the statement of activit ies, the cost of those assets are allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation eKpen.se. The
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation.

Capital outlay $530,639
Depreciation expense (519.415) 11,224

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current
f inancia l resources lo governmental funds. In the statement of net
assets, however,, i ssuing debt increases long-term l i a b i l i t i e s and does not
affect the statement of ac t iv i t ies . S imi lar ly , repayment of principal is an
expenditure in the governmental funds but reduces the l iabil i ty in the
statement of ac t iv i t ies .

Proceeds from issuance of debt (64,898)
Principal payments on debt 489,793 424.895

Change in net assets of governmental ac t iv i t i es (Exhibit A - l ) 221,643

The accompanying notes (Exhibi t A-9) are an integral part of these financial statements.
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City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds - Sewer Fund
Exhibi t A-6

June 30,2007

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Restricted cash

Total current assets

Capital Assets
Non-depreciable
Depreciable, net

Total assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities

Accounts payables
Accrued payables
Deferred revenue
Due to other funds
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current l i ab i l i t i es

Long-Term Debt

Total l i a b i l i t i e s

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted

Capital projects
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Tojai..liabilities and net assets

$266
13,469
6,358
9,428

30.416
59.937

60,000
9.069.210

9.189.147

i 2,661
15,784
2,869

370,000
67.277

468,591

3.182.774

3.651.365

5,879,159

30,416
(371.793)

5.537,782

9.189.147

The accompanying notes (Exh ib i t A-9) are an in tegra l part of these f inancia l slatemcnts,



City of Si. Gabriel, Louisiana
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds - Sewer Fund
Exhibit A-7

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Revenues
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total operating, revenues

Expenses
Personnel
Depreciation
Utilit ies
Other
Chemicals
Suppl ies
Maintenance
Bad debts

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Non-Operating
Contributed capital , grant from governmental sources
Operating transfers from other funds
Interest

Change in net assets

Net Assets
Beginning of year

Hnding of year

$130,678
6.416

137.094

270,530
262,377

76,363
72,057
67,197
29,274
29,117
22,048

828.963

(691,869)

81,347
775,000

fl 44.065)

20/413

5.5 J 7.369

5.537.782

The accompanying notes (Exh ib i t A-9) are an integral part of these financial statements.
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City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds - Sewer Fund
Exhibit A-8

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from customers $1 17,170
Payments to suppliers (283,982)
Payments to employees (269.983)

Net cash used for operating activities (436,795')

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Fixed asset addi t ions (155,112)
Capital grants 81,347
Deferred revenue (26,185)
Principal paid on capital debt (64,632)
Interes t paid on capital debt (144,065)

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities (308,647)

Cash Flows From Non-Capital and Related Financing Activities
Transfers in from other funds 775,000
Payments on loans due to other funds (43,390)

Net cash provided by non-capital and related financing activities 731,610

Net decrease in cash (13,832)

Cash
Beginning of period

Bud of period 30.682

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Used for Operating Activities
Operating loss (691,869)
Adjustments of operating loss

Depreciation 262,377
Bad debts 22,048
Change in operating assets and l iab i l i t i es

Accounts receivable (41,972)
Accounts payable and accrued l i ab i l i t i e s 12.621

Net cash used for operating activit ies (436.795)

The accompanying notes (Exhib i t A-9) are an integral part of these financial statements.
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City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Notes to Financial Statements

Exhibit A-9
.June 30, 2007

Statement Presentation

The financial statements of the City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana (the City) have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is
responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and
Interpretations). Proprietary funds apply Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASR) pronouncements and
Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements
conflict wi th or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails. The more significant accounting
policies established in GAAP and used by the City arc described below.

In J tine 1999, the GASB approved Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management > Discussion and
Analysis for Slate and local Governments. Certain of the signif icant changes in the Statement include the following:

• Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section prov id ingn ana lysis of the City's overall financial
position and results of operations,

• F inanc ia l statements prepared using f u l l accrual accounting for all of the City's activities, inc luding
infrastructure (roads, bridges, etc,).

• A change in the fund f inanc ia l statements to focus on the major funds.

These and other changes arc reflected in the accompanying f inanc ia l statements ( including notes to financial
statements).

Note l-Surnmary Of Significant Account ing Policies

A. Reporting Entity

These f inancial statements present the Ci ty as the pr imary government. For financial reporting purposes, the City
is controlled by or dependent on the City's executive or legislat ive branches (the Mayor or the City Council,
respectively). Control by or dependence on the City is determ ined on the basis of budget adoption, t ax ing authority,
outstanding debts secured by revenues or general obligations of the City, obligations of the City to finance any
deficits that may occur, or receipt of significant: subsidies from the City,

B. Basis of Presentation

The City's basic f inancia l statements consist of the government-wide statements of the pr imary government of the
City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana and the fund f i n a n c i a l statements ( i n d i v i d u a l major funds and combined non-major
funds), The City's f inanc ia l statements arc prepared in accordance wi th account ing principles generally accepted
in the United States of America and applied to governmental units. Private sector standards of accounting and
financial report ing issued prior to December 1, 1989. generally are Followed in both the government-wide f inancial
statements and the proprietary fund f i n a n c i a l statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or
contradict guidance of the GASB. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector
guidance for their business-type activi t ies and enterprise funds, subject to the same l i m i t a t i o n . The City has elected
not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.



City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Notes to Financial Statements

Exhibit A-9
June 30, 2007

Note 1-Summary Of Significant Account ing Policies (Cont inued)

B. Basis of Presentation

GOVERNMKNT-WIDU FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The governmcni-wide financial statements include the statement of net assets and the statement of activities for all
non-fiduciary act ivi t ies of the City. As a general rule, the effect of interfund act iv i ty has been removed from these
statements. The government-wide presentation focuses pr imari ly on the sustainabi l i ty of the government as an
e n t i t y and the change in aggregate f inancia l position resul t ing from the act ivi t ies of the fiscal period. These
statements dis t inguish between the governmental and business-type act ivi t ies of the City.

Governmental activities generally are f inanced through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other
nonexchange revenues.

Business-type activities are financed in whole or part by fees charged to external parties for u t i l i t y services
provided. The City 's sewer services are classified as business-type activit ies.

The government-wide statement of activit ies demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable wi th a
specific f u n c t i o n or segment, Program revenues include: (I) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use,
or direct ly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or business-type activity, and
(2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
funct ion. Taxes and oilier items not properly included among program revenues arc reported instead as general
revenues.

FUND FINANCIAL STATBMKNTS

The Fund Financia l Statements arc very s imilar to the t r a d i t i o n a l government fund statements as prepared by
governments prior to the issuance of G ASB No. 34. Bmphasis is now on the major funds in either the governmental
or business-type categories. Non-major funds (by category) or fund type arc summarized into a single column.

The dai ly operations of the City continue to bo organized on the basis of funds and accounts groups, each of which
is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund arc accounted for with a separate set of self-
ba lancing accounts that comprise its assets, l i ab i l i t i e s , equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as
appropriate. Funds are organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. The City
does not have any fiduciary funds. An emphasis is placed on major funds wi th in the governmental and proprietary-
categories. A fund is considered major if it is the pr imary operating fund of the City (General Fund) or meets the
following criteria:

• Total assets, l i ab i l i t i e s , revenues, or expenditures/expense of tha t i n d i v i d u a l governmental fund or
enterprise f u n d arc at least 10% of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type; and

• Total assets, l i ab i l i t i e s , revenues, or expenditures/expense of tha t i n d i v i d u a l governmental fund or
enterprise fund are at least 5% of the corresponding to ta l for all governmental and enterprise funds
combined,
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City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Notes to Financial Statements

Exhibit A-9
June 30, 2007

Note 1-Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

FUND FINANCIAL STATKMKNTS (Continued)

Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in i n d i v i d u a l funds based upon (he purpose for which they
are to be expended and the means by which spending activit ies are controlled. The various funds and account
groups of the pr imary government presented in the f i nanc i a l statements are described as follows.

Governmental Fund Types

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental funct ions of the Council are financed. The
acquisit ion, use, and balances of expendable f inanc ia l resources and related l i ab i l i t i e s of the City are accounted for
through government funds. Measurement is focused upon determining changes in f inanc ia l position, rather than
net income. The following are the governmental fund types of the City:

General Fund-The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The General fund is always a major fund.

Special Revenue Funds - The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources, other than major capital projects, that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. The
Special Revenue Funds that are considered major funds are the Ad Valorem No, 2 Tax Fund, the Civic Center
Operating Fund, the Parish-Wide Sales and Use Tax Fund and the Code Enforcement Grant Fund.

Debt Service Funds - Debt Service Funds arc used to account for the accumulat ion of resources for, and the
payment of, general long-ierm debt principa I, interest and related costs. The Debt Service Fund is not considered
a major fund.

Capital Projects Funds - Capital Projects Funds are used to account for f inancia l resources to be used for the
acquisi t ion or construct ion of major capita! facil i t ies, other than those financed by Proprietary Funds. There are
no capital projects funds that are considered major funds.

Proprietary Fund Types

Proprietary funds dis t inguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services in connection wi th a proprietary fund ' s pr incipal ongoing
operations. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses,
and depreciation of capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting th i s de f in i t i on arc reported as
nonoperaling revenues and expenses,

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (I) t h a t are f inanced and operated in a
manner s imilar \o private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that the costs and
expenses, inc luding depreciation, of providing goods or servicCvS to the general pub l i c on a c o n t i n u i n g basis be
financed or recovered primari ly through user charges; or (2) where the govern ing body lias decided that periodic
determinat ion of revenues earned, expense incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capi ta l maintenance,
public policy, management control, accountabi l i ty . , or other purposes. The City's Enterprise Fund has been
considered a major fund.
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City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Notes to Financial Statements

Exhibit A-9
June 30,2007

Note ]-Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

Government-wide Financia l Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues arc recorded when earned and expenses arc recorded when a l i ab i l i ty is
incurred, regardless of the t iming of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized in the year for which they
are levied.

Fund Financial Statements

All governmental funds arc accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, only current assets and current l i a b i l i t i e s arc generally included in the balance sheet. Operating
statements of these funds present increases (revenues and other financingsources) and decreases (expenditures and
other uses) in net current assets. Governmental funds are main ta ined on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Governmental fund revenues resulting from exchange transactions are recognized in the fiscal year in which the
exchange takes place and meets the government's ava i l ab i l i t y criteria (susceptible to accrual). "Available" means
collectable wi th in the current period or wi th in 60 days after year-end. Charges for services, fines and forfeitures,
and most governmental miscellaneous revenues arc recorded as earned since they arc measurable and available.

Nonexchange transactions, in which the City receives value wi thou t directly g iv ing value in return, includes sales
tax, ad valorem tax, federal and state aid and grants.

Ad valorem taxes arc recorded in the year the taxes arc assessed. Ad valorem taxes arc assessed on a calender year
basis, become due- on November 1 5th of each year, and become del inquent after December 3 P1. The taxes are
generally collected in December, January and February of the current fiscal year, Sales taxes are recorded when
in the possession of the intermediary collecting agent and are recognized as revenue at that time. Federal and state
aid and grants are recorded as revenue when the City is entitled to the funds, generally corresponding to when grant
related costs are incurred by the City.

Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the related fund l i a b i l i t y is incurred, if measurable,
except for (I) unnmturcd interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and (2) claims and
judgments and compensated absences are recorded as expenditures in the governmental fund type when paid with
expendable f i n a n c i a l resources. Allocations of costs such as depreciation and amortization are not recognized in
the governmental funds.

All proprietary funds arc accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. Proprietary funds arc
main ta ined on the accrual basis of accounting wherein revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which
they arc earned and become measurable, and expenses are recognized in the period incurred, if measurable.

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equiva len ts for the City include the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP) account and each
i n d i v i d u a l fund 's share of the consolidated operating cash accounts.
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Note I -Summary Of Significant Account ing Policies (Continued)

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued)

Consolidated bank accounts have been established for the City into which substantial ly all monies are deposited
and from which most disbursements are made. In addition, investment purchases are charged and maturi t ies are
deposited fo the consolidated bank account. The purpose of the consolidation of bank accounts was to provide
administrativeelTiciency and to maximize investment earnings. The accounts entitled "Cash and Cash Equivalents"
are therefore composed of a fund's pro rata share of the cash balance in the consolidated cash account plus its pro
rala share of investments made through the investment of excess cash. Investment earnings are recorded in the
General Fund.

The investment policy of the City is governed by slate statutes tha t include depository and custodial contract,
provisions. The City invests funds in accordance w i t h LRS 39:1211-1245 and 33:2955 which include, but are not
l imited to, Uni ted States Treasury Bonds, Treasury Notes, Treasury Bi l ls and ful ly collaterali/ecl interest bearing
checking accounts, and certificates of deposit, Other provisions require depositories to insure or collateralize all
deposits in accordance wi th state law and require securities collaterali/.ing deposits to be held by an independent
th i rd party wi th whom the City has a custodial agreement. The City p r imar i ly u t i l i zes LAMP to invest idle funds.

For purposes of the statement of cash Hows, l iqu id investments of the enterprise fund wi th a matur i ty of three
months or less are considered to be cash equivalents . Also see Note 2.

E. Accounts Receivable

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of al I revenues earned at year end and not yet received. For
governmental act ivi t ies uncollect ible amounts due for receivables are recognized as bad debts directly charged off
at the t i m e information becomes avai lab le which indicates that the par t icular receivable is not collectible. In
governmental fund types, the uncollectible amount is charged directly to the revenue reported. In business-type
activities, uncol lect ible amounts due from sewer b i l l i n g receivables are recognized as bad debts through the use of
an allowance account or are directly charged offa t (he t ime informat ion becomes available which indicates that the
par t icular receivable is not collectible. An allowance fo rdouh t fu l accounts of approximately $69,455 was recorded
at June 30, 2007

F. Inicrfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between i n d i v i d u a l funds. Those related to short-term
borrowings are classified as "due from other funds" or "due to other funds" on the statements of net assets/balance
sheets and result p r i m a r i l y from par t ic ipa t ion in the consolidated cash account. Intcrfund receivables and payables
between funds wi th in governmenta l act ivi t ies are e l iminated in the statement of net assets. See Notes 9 and 10 for
details of interfund transactions, i n c l u d i n g receivables and payables at year end. Any residual balances outs tanding
between the governmental act ivi t ies and business-type act ivi t ies arc reported in the government-wide f i n a n c i a l
s ta tements as ' ' internal balances".

G. Restricted Cash

Restricted cash on the balance sheet of the enterprise funds represent amounts which have been designated to meet
unexpected contingencies for property repairs and replacements. Restr icted cash consisted of $'30,4 16 as of June
30,2007.
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Note 1-Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

H. Capital Assets

'flic accounting treatment of property, plant and equipment (fixed assets) depends on whether the assets are used
in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they arc reported in the government-
wide or fund financial statements.

Government-wide F inanc ia l Statements

In the government-wide f inanc i a l statements, fixed assets are accounted for as capita] assets. AH fixed assets arc-
valued at his tor ical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual is unavai lable , except for donated fixed assets which
are recorded at t he i r estimated fair value at the date of donation. Major outlays for capi ta l assets and improvements
are capitalized at completion of the construction projects.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or mater ia l ly extend asset lives
are expensed. Improvements are capital ized.

Prior to the implementat ion of GASB 34, governmental funds ' infrastructure assets were not eapitali/ed. These
assets are comprised of the streets maintained by the City and have been valued at estimated historical cost.

Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the statement of activities, with
accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net assets'. Depreciation is provided over the assets1

estimated useful lives using the s t ra ight- l ine-method of depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by type
of asset is as follows:

Bui ld ings 25 - 40 years
Improvements 15 - 30 years
Machinery and equipment 5 - 20 years
Ut i l i ty system 5 - 50 years
Infrastructure 20 - 40 years

Fund F inanc i a l .Statements

in fund financial statements fixed assets used in governmental fund operations are not capitalized. Instead, capital
acquisi t ion and construction are reflected as expenditures in the governmental funds.

Property, plant and equipment used by the proprietary funds are stated at cost. Interest costs incurred dur ing
construction periods are capitalized. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives of the assets
using the straight-l ine method. The estimated useful lives arc as follows:

Sewer treatment systems 10 - 40 years
Sewer pump stat ion 20 years

I , Long-term Debt

The account ing treatment for long-term debt depends on whether the assets are used in governmental fund
operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the government-wideor fund f inanc ia l
statements.



City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Notes to Financial Statements

Exhibi t A-9
June 30,2007

Note 1-Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

f • Long-term Debt (Continued)

In the government-wide statement ofne l assets and in the proprietary fund types' f inancial statements, long-term
debt is reported as l i ab i l i t i es . Bond issuance costs arc reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of
the bond. The long-term debt consists p r imar i l y of public improvement bonds, certificates of indebtedness for
publ ic improvements and accrued compensated absences.

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as l iabi l i t ies in the fund financial statements. The debt
proceeds are reported as other f inancing sources and payment of principal and interest are reported as expenditures.
The accounting for proprietary fund debt is the same in the fund statements as it is in the government-wide
statements. The City is not obligated for any special assessment debt.

J. Compensated Absences

All f u l l t ime employees of the City are ent i t led to annua l vacation and sick leave wi th pay. Prior to 2002, vacation
leave carried over from one year to another wi thout l imi t a t ion . Vacation leave unused upon termination or
retirement w i l l be paid to the employee. During 2002, the City adopted new leave policies whereby, accumulated
unused vacation leave earned subsequent to the policy change would be forfeited at the end of the City's fiscal year
end. Addi t ional ly , accumulated sick leave may be accumulated up to 60 days. However, such time is forfeited upon
retirement or terminat ion and has not been reflected in these financial statements,

K. Net Assets

Net assets represent thedifference between assets and l i ab i l i t i e s . Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related
debt consist of capi ta l assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any debt
proceeds used for the acquisit ion, construction or improvementsof those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted
when there are l imi ta t ions imposed on their use by external parties such as creditors, grantors, laws or regulations
of other governments.

I- Reserves and Designations of Equi ty

Some portions of fund balance and/or retained earnings are reserved to indicate that a portion of equity is legally
restricted to a specific future use and is not available for appropriation or expenditure. Designated portions of fund
balance indicate tentative future spending plans, which may be changed and are subject to subsequent authorization
before expenditures can be made. The City has made the fo l lowing reserves and designations of equity: (1)
designated for subsequent year's expenditures is tha t port ion of fund balance which has been budgeted to balance
the fo l lowing year's budgets, and (2) other designations are made for specific indicated purposes included in the
t i t l e .

M. Intcrfimd Transfers

Transfers between funds are included in the budgets of such funds. In those cases where repayment is expected,
the advances are accounted for through the various i n t e r f u n d accounts.
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Note 1-Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

N. Budget Policy and Budgetary Accounting

A proposed budget is prepared and submitted by the Mayor to the City Council prior to the beginning of each fiscal
year. A budget summary and notice of a publ ic hear ing is published wi th the pub l i c hearing conducted prior to the
commencement of the budget year.

The a n n u a l operating budget, prepared on the accrual basis, covers the general fund, the special revenue fund, the
debt service funds, capital project fund and the enterprise fund. At the end of the fiscal year, unexpended
appropriat ions automatically lapse. Budget amendments are approved by (he City Council and are included in the
f inanc i a l statements.

In connection with budget preparation, a portion of the unreserved fund balance of an individual fund may be
designated for expenditures of the subsequent year. Such designation represents the extent to which the fund
balance is used to balance the subsequent year's operating budget of that fund, as reflected in the legally adopted
budget.

O. Estimates

The preparation of f inancial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabili t ies and
disclosures of cont ingent assets and l i ab i l i t i e s at the date of the financial statements. They may also affect the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses of proprietary funds and the government-wide financial statements
during the reporting period. Actua l results could differ from those estimates. Rslimat.es are used pr imari ly when
accounting for depreciation, prepaid insurance, and deferred revenue.

Note 2-Cash and Investments

The City may invest in Un i t ed iSlalcs bonds, treasury notes, or certificates of deposit of state banks organized under
the laws of Louisiana and nat ional banks hav ing t h e i r pr inc ipa l office in the State of Louisiana or other q u a l i f y i n g
federally insured investments.

At year end, the City's deposits , i nc lud ing demand deposits accounts, certificates of deposit and restricted cash,
totaled $1,376,680 and the related bank balances were $1,483,127, The bank balances at June 30, 2007 were
secured as follows:

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation $372380
Pledged securities 836,424
Uninsured and uncollateral ized 34,313
Inves tments not subject to categorization

Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP) 240,009

Total hank balance K483J26

Investments by the City in the LAMP pools arc considered unclassif ied as to credit risk because they are not
evidenced by securities tha t exisl in physical or book form, In the case of deposits, t h i s is the risk that in the event
of a bank fai lure , the City 's deposits may not be returned to it. As of June 30, 2007, $34,3 13 of Hie City's bank
balance SI ,483,126 was exposed to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and nncollatcralizcd.
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Note 3-Due From Other Governments

Due from olhcr governments at J u n e 30, 2007 consists of the fol lowing:

Primary Government
State of Louisiana - Video Poker and other $156,080
Parish of Iberville, Louisiana, sales tax 277,777
US Department of Agriculture - Rural Development 9.428

Total primary government 443.2S5

Note 4-Ad Valorem Taxes

The J974 Louisiana Const i tut ion, Article 7 Section 18, provided tha t land and improvements for residential
purposes he assessed at 10% of fair market value; other property and electric cooperative properties excluding land
are to be assessed at 15%; and publ ic service properties excluding land are to be assessed at 25% of fair market
value. Fair market value is determined by the elected assessor of the parish on all property subject to taxation
except pub l i c service properties which are valued by the Louis iana Tax Commission (LRS 47:1957). The
correctness of assessments by the assessor is subject to review and certification by the Louisiana Tax Commission.
The assessor is required to reappraise all property subject to taxation at intervals of not more than four years.

All property taxes are recorded in governmental funds, as explained in Note 1 above. Revenues in governmental
funds are recognized in the accounting period in which they become ava i l ab l e and measurable, Property taxes are
considered measurable in the calendar year o f the tax levy. Accordingly, the taxes assessed for the calendar year
fa l l ing within the current fiscal year are recorded as revenue, Properly taxes are considered avai lable because they
are substantial ly collected dur ing the fiscal year and are therefore available to l iqu ida te l iab i l i t i es o f the current
period.

The property lax calendar is as follows:

Millagc rates adopted November 16, 2006
Levy date November 16,2006
Due date December 3 1, 2006
Lien date January 1, 2007
Collection dales December I, 2006 to February 28, 2007

For the year ended June 30, 2007, taxes of 16.84 m i l l s were levied for general government and publ ic purposes on
property with assessed va lua t ions total ing $125,150,972. Total taxes levied were $2,107,542 and collected were
$2.058,494. Property tax mileage rates are adopted in the calendar year in which the taxes are levied and recorded.
All taxes arc due and collectible when the assessment rolls are filed on or before December 31 of the current year,
and become d e l i n q u e n t thereafter.

The City collected ad valorem taxes of $ 1/494,523 from ten property owners du r ing the year ended June 30, 2007.
Tax collections from four of the ten taxpayers amounted to $L 176,445.
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Note 5-Fixed Assets

A summary of changes in general fixed assets for the year ended June 30, 2007 is as follows:

Governmental Activi t ies
Capital assets not being depreciated

Land

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements
Tiquipment and vehicles
Inf ras t ruc ture

Total capi tal assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings and improvements
Equipment and vehicles
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Governmental activit ies capital <tssets, net

Business- type Activi t ies
Capital assets not being depreciated

Land
Total capital assets not bcinu depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated
Sewer treatment plants
Sewer pump station

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for
Sewer treatment plants
Sewer pump station

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Business-type ac l iv i t i e s capital assets, net

Balance
July 1,
2006

$359.897

5,154,080
2> .190,924
1,942.705
9.287.709

194,164
1,371,666

320.973
1.886.803

7,400,906

7J_6.QJiQ3

40.000

9,764,138
176.272

724,230
19.705

743.935

9,196,475

9.236.475

Increases

$282.427

$53,814
157,783
36.615

248,212

133,559
253,901
131,955
519,415

(271.203)

1 L224

20.000

135,1 12

135.112

255,582
6,795

262,377

027.265)

f l 07,265)

Balance
June 30,

Decreases 2007

$642,324

5,207,894
2,348,707
1.979.320
9,535,921

327,723
1,625,567

452.928
2,406.218

7,129,703

7,772,027

60,000

9,899,250
176,272

10,075.522

979,812
26,500

1.006,312

9.069.210

9,129,210
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Note 5-Fixcil Assets (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities
Genera! Government $181,432
Public Safety 89,501
Recreation 184,419
Streets and sanitat ion 64.063

Total depreciation expense-governmental activities 519,415

Note 6-Long-tcrm Debt

Debt Outstanding-The following is a summary of debt transactions of the City for the year ended June 30, 2007:

Balance
J u l y ! ,

2006

$4,737,054
675,000
262,513
200.000

5,874,567

Additions

$64,898
U 25.000

1,189,898

Deletions

$58,040
$277,250

154,503
950.000

1.43 9,793

Balance
June 30,

2007

$4,679,014
397,750
172,908
375,000

5,624.672

Due
Within

One Year

$50,772
165,750
63,619

375,000

655,141

Governmental Activities
Public improvements
Certificates of indebtedness
Capital leases
Short-term loans

Business-type Activities
Revenue bonds 3.314.683 - 64,632 3.250.051 67.277

The City issued short-term debt dur ing 2007 to meet cash working capital requirements, which is the result of the
l iming of property tax receipts.

Long-term debt obligations for the primary government at June 30, 2007, are comprised of the following:

Govern mental Activities
$1,300,000 Certificate of indebtedness secured by a pledge of general revenues,
pr inc ipa l due annua l ly in August , and interest due semiannually at 4.5%, maturing
on August I, 2009. $1,100,000 is dedicated for road improvements and $200,000 is
dedicated for sewer improvements, $397,750

$4,980,000 Civic Center Revenue Bond secured by a pledge and dedication of
sales tax revenues, due in monthly installments oT $22,012 through October 7, 2045;
interest at 4.375%. 4,679,014

(Continued - amounts carried forward) 5,076,764
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Note 6-Long-term Debt (Continued)

Governmental Activities
(Continued - amounts brought forward) $5,076,764

$200,000 short-term loan due on demand with a variable interest rate, 7,25% at June 30,
2007. Note is col lateral ized by certificates of deposit. 200,000

$75,000 short-term loan due on demand with a variable interest rate, 7.25% at June 30,
2007. Note is collatcralizcd by certificates of deposit.

$100,000 short-term loan due on demand with a var iable interest rate, 6.64% at June 30,
2007. Note is eollateralizcd by certificates of deposit,

Capital lease agreement secured by vehicles and equipment purchased, due in various
month ly installments ranging from $1,104 to $2,500 through 2010. 172.908

Total long-term debt from governmental activities 5.624.672

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Fund - Revenue Bonds

$200,000 Certificate of Indebtedness. See above $1,300,000 Certificate of Indebtedness
for description. 97,250

$1,237,000 .Sewer Revenue Bonds secured by a pledge and dedication of sewer
revenues, due in monthly ins ta l lments of $5,617 through December 14, 2040, with
interest at 4.50%. 1,163,815

$532,000 Sewer Revenue Bonds secured by a pledge and dedication of sewer
revenues, due in monthly instal lments of $2,416 through June 6 ,2041; interest at 4.50%. 503,737

$1,064,000 Sewer Revenue Bonds secured by a pledge and dedication of sewer
revenues, due in monthly ins ta l lments of $4,884 through December 18, 2043,
with interest at 4.50%, 1,047,302

$444,000 Sewer Revenue Bonds secured by a pledge and dedica t ion of sewer
revenues, due in monthly instal lments of $1,980 through February 23, 2045, wi th
interest at 4.50%. 437,947

Total long-term debt from business-type activities 3,250,051

The total amount of interest charged to expense for governmental activit ies for the years ending June 30, 2007 and
2006 was $299,064 and $234,952, respectively. Interest charged to expense related to business-type activi t ies for
the years ending June 30, 2007 and 2006 was $144,065 and $167,466, respectively.
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Note 6-LoiiK-tcrm Debt (Cont inued)

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity- the a n n u a l requirements to iiniorli/e debt outstanding (not inc lud ing short-
term note) al June 30, 2007, are as follows:

2008
2009
2010
2 0 1 1
2012
2013
2018
2023
2028
2033
2038 •
2043 •

2017
2022
2027
2032
2037
2042
2047

GOVKRNMKNTAI
Certificate of
Indebtedness

Principal Interest

$165,750 $19,794
174,250 12,144
57,750 4 , 1 1 2

. AirnvrriKs
Civic Center

On pit a 1
Principal

$63,619
50,361
52,313

6,617

Leases
Interest

$10,428
5,904
3,954

954

Revenue
Principal

$50,772
53..039
55,406
57.879
60,463

345,290
429,552
534,372
664,773
826,995

1,028,801
571,672

Bond
Interest

$213,372
211,105
208,738
206,265
202,346
975,4.30
891,168
786,348
655,947
493,725
291,919

58,644

Total
Lone-term Debt

Principal

$280,141
277,650
165,467
64,496
60,463

345,290
429,552
534,372
664.773
826,995

1,028,801
571.672

Interest

$243,594
229,153
216,804
207,219
202,346
975,430
891,168
786,348
655,947
493,725
291,919

58,644

397.750 36.050 172.908 21.240 4,679.014 5.195.007 5.249.672 5,252,297

BUSINKSS-TYPK ACTIVIT'IKS

2008
2009
2010

201 I

2012
' 0 1 3 - 2 0 1 7
2 0 1 8 - 2 0 2 2
>023 -2027
!028 - 2032
>033 -2037
>038 - 2042
1043 - 2047

Certificate of
Indebtedness

Principal Interest

$29,250 53,493
30,750 2,143
37,250 726

97,250 6,362

Sewer
Revenue

Principal

$38,027
39,770
41,592
43,526
45,492

260,715
326,186
407,109
510,602
638,833
655,677
145/272

3, 152. 801

Bonds
Interest

$140,737
138,994
137,172
135,266
133,182
633,105
567,634
486,711
383,218
254,987

99,250
6J40

3,116,996

Total
Lone-term

Principal
Debt

Interest

$67,277 $144,230
70,520
78,842
43,526
45,492

260,715
326,186
407,109
510,602
638,833
655,677
145.272

3.250,051 3

141,137
137,898
135,266
133,182
633,105
567,634
486,711
383,218
254,987

99,250
6,740

.123,358

Normally, debt issues arc not retired prior to their ma tu r i ty , For accounting purposes, interest coupons issued in
connection with the .sale of various bond issues become obligations/expenditures of the City only with the passage
of time, and (hey represent fixed and determinable obligat ions which must be retired from future revenues.

There arc no outstanding bonds secured by ad valorem taxes of the City at th i s l ime.
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Note 6-Long-term Debt (Continued)

Bond Restrictions - Sewer Revenue Bonds Phase I, II, Hi, and IV - In accordance with the indentures governing
Sewerage Uti l i ty Fund Revenue Bonds Series 2000, 2001, 2002 and 2003, cash is required to be deposited into
accounts administered by a trustee bank. These bonds are a direct l i ab i l i t y of the Sewerage Enterprise Fund to be
serviced by the earnings from the Fund, Deposits are to be made to these trust accounts in accordance with the
requirements of each debt issue.

1. The Sewer System Revenue Fund requires all revenue derived from its operations to be deposited in a bank that
is EI memberof the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation as long as any of the bonds are outstanding. Required
transfers should be made on a monthly basis to designated trust accounts. In addi t ion, the Series 2000, 2001,
2002 and 2003 Bonds require the use of a separate const ruct ion account.

2. The Sewer Revenue Bond and Interest S ink ing Funds require monthly fund transfers for the Sewer System
Revenue Fund to provide payment of the next maturing interest and pr incipal of the revenue bonds.

3. The Sewer Revenue Bond Reserve Funds require monthly transfers u n t i l a sum equal to the highest combined
principal and interest fa l l ing due in any year has been accumulated. These funds are restricted to payment of
principal and interest in case of defaul t . Monthly transfers are $28!, $121, $244 and $99. At June 30, 2007,
$1 1,084 and $4,124 was held in these reserve accounts.

4. The Sewer Depreciation and Contingency Funds require monthly transfers of $28L $121, $244 and $99. The
funds are-restricted to payments for unusua l or extraordinary maintenance, repairs^ replacement, and extensions
and improvements that w i l l either enhance its revenue producing capacity or provide improved service. It w i l l
also be used to pay principal and interest if there are not sufficient funds in the Sewer Revenue Bond and Interest
S ink ing Funds, or Sewer Revenue Bond Reserve Funds. At June 30,2007, $ 1 1,084 and $4,124 was held in these
reserve accounts.

Bond Restrictions - Civic Center Revenue Bonds - In accordance with the indentures governing Civic Center
Revenue Bonds, Series 2003, cash is periodically deposited into accounts administered by a trustee bank. These
bonds are a direct l i a b i l i t y of the Civic Center Special Revenue to be serviced by the earnings from the Fund.
Deposits are made to these trust accounts in accordance with the requirements.

1. The Civic Center Revenue Funds require all revenue derived from its operations to be deposited in a bank that
is a member of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation as long as any of the bonds are outstanding. Required
transfers are made on a monthly basis to designated trust accounts.

2. The Civic Center Revenue Bond Reserve Fund requires monthly transfers of $1,100 u n t i l a sum equal to the
highest combined p r inc ipa l and interest fa l l ing due in any year has been accumulated. This fund is restricted
to payment of principal and interest in case of defaul t .

3. The Civic Center Depreciation and Contingency Funds requires monthly transfers of $1,100. The Funds are
reslricted to payments for unusual or extraordinary maintenance, repairs, replacement, and extensions and
improvements that wi l l either enhance its revenue producing capacity or provide improved service. It wi l l also
be used to pay pr incipal and interest if there arc not sufficient funds in the Civic Center Revenue Fimd,

The City was not in compliance, wi th the Sinking, Reserve, Depreciation and Contingency Funds requirements of
the Sewer Revenue Bonds Phase 1, II, 111 and IV and Civic Center Revenue Bond covenants. The required deposits
are not being made into the various accounts.
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Note 7-I)edieated Revenues

Ad Valorem Tax - a 6.84 m i l l ad valorem tax was approved by voters in 2007. The tax is dedicated for publ ic
improvements including, but not l imited to, sewer and waste water facil i t ies, water and fire protection, streets,
sidewalks, bridges, drainage and other cap i ta l expenditures, i nc lud ing operating and maintenance eosts related
thereto. Dedicated ad valorem taxes of$849,598 were collected during the year ended June 30, 2007.

Addi t iona l ly , a 10 m i l l ad valorem tax was approved by voters in October2004. This tax is dedicated for public
improvements including, biUnot limited to, housing, economic development, and funding for a Community Center.
Dedicated ad valorem taxes of $1,208,896 were collected dur ing the year ended June 30, 2007.

Sales and Use Tax - a one-third of one percent sales and use tax is dedicated for publ ic purposes, including, but not
l imi ted to, sewer and wastewatcr faci l i t ies , water and fire protection, streets, sidewalks, bridges and drainage and
other capital expenditures, inc luding operating and maintenance costs related thereto. The City received $497,608
from sales and use tax during the year ended June 30, 2007.

Parish Wide Sales Tax - a one-third of one percent parish wide sales tax is dedicated for public infrastructure and
maintenance. The City received $ 1,232,889 from parish wide sales tax during the year ended June 30, 2007.

Note 8-Pension and Retirement Plans

MUNICIPAL EMPLOYES' RI:TIRFJVJI-;NT SYSTEM oi< LOUISIANA

Plan Description - substant ia l ly all employees of the City are members of the Munic ipa l Employees' Retirement
System of Louisiana (System), a cost-sharing, mul t ip le employer defined benefit pension plan administered by a
separate board of trustees. The System is composed of two distinct plans, Plan A and Plan B, with separate assets
and benefit provisions. All employees of the City are members of Plan A.

All permanent employees working at least 35 hours per week who are paid wholly or in part from City funds arc
eligible to participate in the System. Under Plan A, employees who retire at or after age 60, with a least 10 years
of creditable service or at any age wi th at least 25 years of creditable service are entitled to a retirement benefit,
payable monthly for l ife, equal to a 3% of their f ina l average salary m u l t i p l i e d for each year of creditable service.
Monthly retirement benefits paid under Plan A cannot exceed the lesser of 100% of f inal average salary or $70
m u l t i p l i e d by total years of creditable service. F ina l average salary is the employee's average salary over the 36
consecutive or joined months that produce the highest average.

Employees who terminate with at least the amount of creditable service stated above and do not withdraw the i r
employee contr ibutions may retire at the ages specified above and receive the benefit accrued to their date of
t e rmina t i on .

The System also provides death and d isabi l i ty benefits. Benefits are established or amended by state s ta tu te ,

The System issues an a n n u a l avai lable f inanc ia l report tha t includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for the System. That report may be obtained by wr i t ing to the Mun ic ipa l Kmployees' Retirement
System, 7937 Office Park Boulevard, Baton Rouge, Louis iana 70809, or by ca l l ing (225) 925-4810.

-59



City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Notes to Financial Statements

Exhibi t A-9
June 30, 2007

Note 8-Pension and Retirement Plans (Continued)

MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES' RUTWHMKNT SYSTKM 01- touisiANA(Continucd)

Policy - under Plan A, members arc required by state statue to contribute 9.25% of their annua l covered
salary and the City is required to contr ibute at an actuarial ly determined rale. The current rate is 16.25% of annual
covered payroll. Contributions to the System also inc lude one-fourth of one percent of the ad valorem taxes shown
to be collectible by the tax rolls of each parish. These tax dollars are divided between Plan A and Plan B based
proportionately on the salaries of the active mem hers of each p lan . The contr ibution requirements of plan members
and the City are established and may be amended by state statute. As provided by Louisiana Revised Statute
1 1 : 1 03, the employer contributions are determined by actuarial valuat ion and are subject to change each year based
on the results of the va lua t ion for the prior fiscal year.

The City's contr ibut ion to the System under Phm A for the year ended June 30, 2007 was $127,812.

MUNICIPAL POLICB KMPLOYKKS' RKTWKMKNT SYSTKM

Plan Description - police department employees of the City are members of the Munic ipa l Police Employees'
Retirement System (System), a cost-sharing, m u l t i p l e employer defined benefit pension plan administered by a
separate board of trustees.

All permanent f u l l - t i m e police officers who are paid whol ly or in part from City police department funds are
required to participate in the System.

Under the plan, officers who retire at or after age 55 with at least 12 years of creditable service, or at or after age
50 with at least 20 years of credi table service, or any age with at least 25 years of creditable service are enti t led to
a retirement benefit, payable monthly for l ife, equal to three and one-third percent of their final average salary
m u l t i p l i e d for each year of creditable service not to exceed 1 00% of salary. The System also provides death and
disabil i ty benefits. Benefits arc established or amended by slate statute.

The System issues an a n n u a l p u b l i c l y avai lable f inancial report that includes f inancia l statements and required
supplementary information for the System. Thai report may be obtained by writing, to ihe Municipal Police
Employee's Ret i rement System, 7722 Office Park Boulevard, Suite 200, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809-7601 or
by ca l l ing (225) 929-74 I I .

Funding Policy - under the Plan, members are required by state .statute to contribute 7.5% of thei r a n n u a l covered
salary and the Oily is required to contribute at an actuarial ly determined rate. The current rate is 1 5.5% of annual
covered payroll . The cont r ibut ion requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be amended
by stale s ta tute . As established by state statute, the employer con t r ibu t ions are determined by ac tuar ia l va luat ion
and are subject to change each year based on the results of the valuat ion for the prior fiscal year,

'The City's cont r ibut ion to the System under the Phm for the year ended June 30, 2007 was $38,327.

F I R I - F I G I ITFCRS* RKTIRI -MKNT SYSTKM

Plan Description - fire department employees of the City are members of the Firefighters' Ret irement System
(System), n state-wide cost sharing, m u l t i p l e employer defined benefit pension plan administered by a separate
board of trustees.
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Note H-Pcnsion and Retirement Plans (Continued)

FlRERGl ITKKS' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (Continued)

All permanent f u l l - t i m e fire department employees who are paid wholly or in part from the City's fire department
are eligible to participate in the System.

Under (he Plan, employees who retire at or after age 5 5 with at least 12 years of creditable service, or at or after age
50 with at least 20 years of creditable service, or any age with at least 25 years of creditable service, are entitled
lo a retirement benefit payable month ly for life equal to 3.0% of thei r f ina l average compensation based on 36
consecutive months of highest pay m u l t i p l i e d for each year of credi table service not to exceed 100% of f inal salary.
'Hie System also provides death and d i s ab i l i t y benefits. Benefits arc established or amended by state statute.

The System issues an annua l pub l i c ly ava i l ab le financial report that includes financial s tatements and required
supplementary informat ion for the System. That report may be obtained by writ ing to the Firefighters5 Retirement
System, Post Office Box 94095, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804-9095, or by cal l ing (225) 925-4060.

Policy - under the Plan, members are required by state statute to cont r ibu te 8.0% of the i r annua l covered
salary and the City is required to contribute at an ac tua r i a l ly determined rate. The current rate is 1 5.5% of annual
covered payroll. The c o n t r i b u t i o n requirements of p l an members and the City are established and may be amended
by stale s tatute .

As established by state s ta tute , the cm plover contr ibut ions arc determined by ac tuar ia l valuat ion and arc subject (o
change each year based on the results of the va lua t ion for the prior fiscal year.

The City's con t r ibu t ion to the System under the Plan for the year ended June 30, 2007 was $16,974.

Note 9-Interfuml Transfers

Operating Transfers for the year ended J u n e 30, 2007 were as follows:

Governmental Activities Transfers In Transfers Out
General

Sales lax $400,000
Ad Valorem 12,940
Ad valorem tax fund 220,000
Sales and use tax - Parish-wide 475,000

Sales and Use Tax Fund
General fund $400,000
Road improvement 35,632
Sewer fund 100,000

Sales and Use Tax Fund - Parish Wide
General 475,000
Sewer fund 250,000

Ad Valorem - General _ 12.940

(Continued - amounts carried forward) 1,143,572 1,237,940
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Note <Mnterfund Transfers(Contimied)

Governmental Activities
(Continued - amounts brought forward)
Ad Valorem Tax Fund #2

Civic Center operating fund
Debt Service - roads
General
.Sewer

Civic Center Operating Fund
Ad Valorem Tax Fund 111

Road Improvement
Sales and Use Tax Fund

Debt Service Fund
Ad Valorem Tax Fund #2

Total governmental activities

Business-type Activities

Transfers In Transfers Out

Sewer
Sales tax
Ad Valorem Tax Fund #2
Sales and Use Tax Fund - Parish-wide

Total business-type activities

Total pr imary uoverumeut

Note 10-Jn(crfund Receivable and Payable Balances

Inlerfund balances at June 30, 2007 were as follows:

Govern mental Activities
General Fund

Sewer Fund
(."ode Enforcement Grant Fund
Sales and Use Tax Fund

Code Enforcement Grant Fund
General Fund

Sales and Use Tax Fund
General Fund

Parish-wide Sales and Use Tux Fund
Sewer

Total uovernmental ac t i v i t i e s

$1,143,572

435.000

330.000
K90H.572

] 00,000
425,000
250.000

Receivable

30,133
140,000

$1,237,940

435,000
330,000
220,000
425,000

35.632

2,683,572

2.683,572

30,133

140,000

176,491
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Note 10-fnterfund Receivable anil Payable Balances (Continued)

Receivable Payable
Business-type Activities

Sewer Fund
General Fund $6,358
Parish-wide Salts and Use 'Tax Fund $370.000

Total hnsincss-tvpe ac t iv i t ies 6,358 370.000

Total primary government 546.491 546,491

Note 11-Compensation to Governing Body

The City's elected officials terms expire on June 30, 2007. The City compensated its Mayor and members of the
City Council as follows:

Mayor George Grace $64,008
City Council

Flora Danielfield 9,600
Freddie Frazier 9,600
Lionel Johnson 9,600
Andre Jones 9,600
Nyra Taylor 9,600

1.12,008

Note 12-Commifments and Contingencies

Suits findChims - various sui ts and claims arising in the ordinary eourse of operations are pending against the City.
The majority of the eases are ei ther covered by insurance or other defenses, however, (he u l t i m a t e effect of such
li t igation cannot be ascertained at this t ime . It is (he opinion of the City's management that the u l t ima te resolution
of such l i t i ga t i on w i l l not have a material effect on the financial position of the City.

Risk Management - the City is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts, thef t of, damage to, and destruction
of assets, errors and omissions, injur ies to employees, and na tura l disasters for which the City carries commercial
insurance. There were no major changes in insurance coverage from the prior year and settlements have not
exceeded coverage in the past four years,

Grants - the City receives slate and local grants for specif ic purposes that are subject to aud i t by the grantor
agencies, Such audi ts could lead to requests for reimbursement to the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed
under terms of the grant. It is the opin ion of the City management that its compliance wi th the terms of grants wi l l
result in negligible , if any, disallowed costs,

Cash - The Ci ty typical ly m a i n t a i n s cash and temporary investments in local banks that may, at times, exceed the
FOIC l imi t s of $100,000, Amounts in excess of the h'DIC l i m i t s are required by law to be collateralized by
securit ies pledged by the bank.
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Note 13-New Account ing Pronouncement

OASB Statement No. 43, "financial Reporting for Post-employment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans"*
and GASB Statement No. 45, "siccmtnfing and financial Reporting for Post-employment Benefits Other Than
Pensions", addresses account ing tor other post-employment benefits. The City is required to adopt the statement
for the year ended June 30,2009. Management for the Ci ty has not yet addressed the impact of the adoption and
whether it would have a mater ia l impact on the City's financial statements.

Note 14-Prior Period Adjus tment

During2007, the City discovered an error in the recording of 2006 transact ions. The-changes resulted in an increase
in net assets on the balance sheet of the Government and Proprietary Funds and Net Assets on the government-wide
basis. Changes to the balances arc as follows;

Government-wide
Governmental Activities

Net assets, beginning of year, as previously staled $3,397.077
Increase to record 2006 sales tax receivable 56,474

Net assets, as restated U 5 3.551

General Parish-wide Sales
Fund and Use Tax Fund

Fund balance, beg inn ing of year.
Fund balance, beginning of year, as previously staled $760,190 $103,765

Decrease to record short-term debt (200.000)
Increase to recorded 2006 sales

tax receivable

Fund balance, as restated 560 J 90
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Exhibit B
Year Ended June 30,2007

Revenues
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Licenses and permits
Fines
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures
General government
Public safety
Streets and sanitation
Economic development
Social and recreational services
Debt service

Total expenditures

Excess of expenditures over revenues

Other Financing Sources
Proceeds from issuance of debt
Transfers In

Sales and use tax fund
Ad valorem tax fund #2
Parish wide sales and use tax fund
Ad valorem tax fund

Total other financing sources

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
financing sources over expenditures

Fund Balance
Beginning of year, as previously reported

Prior period adjustment

Beginning of year, as restated

End of year

Original
Budget

$940,000
320,000
175,000
170,000
50,200

1,655.200

862,950
919,300
785,400

1 98, 1 00
91,000

2,856,750

(K 20 1.550)

500,000

475,000
250,000

1,225.000

2X450

Final
Budget

$890,000
785,000
175,000
1 00,000
1 1 8.200

2,068,200

1,158,950
907,300

1,076,900
250,000
196,100
153,000

3.742.250

(1, 674,050)

500,000
8,962

475,000
220,000

1.203,962

(470,088)

Actual

$894,642
879,341
169,257
116,583
183.963

2.243,786

1,169,723
918,296

1,031,703
250,160
267,036
202,988

3,839.906

(K596,120)

64,898

400,000
12,940

475,000
220,000

1.172,838

(423,282)

760,190

(200.000)

560 J 90

136,908

Variance -
Favorable

(unfavorable)

$4,642
94,341
(5,743)
16,583
65,763

175.586

(10,773)
(10,996)
45,197

(160)
(70,936)
(49,988)
(97,656)

77,930

64,898

(100,000)
3,978

(31J24)

46,806

The accompanying notes (Exh ib i t s A-9 and B-3) arc an integral part of these f inanc ia l statements.
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Revenues
Taxes

Ad valorem

Expenditures
Economic development
Housing development

Excess of revenues over expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers

General Fund
Civic Center operating fund
General fund - streets
Sewer
Debt service— roads

Total other financing sources

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
other financing sources

Fund Balance
Beginning of year

End of year

Original
Budget

$1,300,000

30,000
35.000
65,000

1,235,000

300,000
250,000
425,000
(85,000

U 60,000

75,000

Final
Budget

$1,200,000

30,000
35.000
65,000

U 35, 000

435,000
220,000
425,000
330,000

K4 10.000

(275,000)

Actual

$1.200,918

16.000
16.000

1,184.918

(435,000)
(220,000)
(425,000)
(330.000)

(1,410,000)

(225,082)

Variance -
Favorable

(unfavorable)

$918

30,000
19,000
49.000

49,918

(8,962)

(8,962)

40,956

292,058

66.976

The accompanying notes (Exhibits A-9 and B-3) are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Revenues
Intergovernmenta l
Other

Expenditures
Social and recreational services

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other Financing Sources
Transfers in

Hxcess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other financing sources

Fund Balance
Beginning of year

End of year

Original
Budget

$275,000
45.000

.120,000

628,644

(308,644)

300,000

(8,644)

Final
Budget

$275,000
! 0,000

285,000

750,144

(465., 144)

435,000

OOJ44J

Actual

$282,520
8,094

290,623

765,717

(475,094)

435,000

(40,094)

157,025

116,931

Variance -
Favorable

(unfavorable)

$7,529
(1,906)

5,623

(15,573)

(9,950)

(9,950)

The accompanying notes (Exhibits A-9 and B-3) arc an integral part of these financial s ta tements .
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Exhib i t B-3
Year Ended June 30, 2007

Revenues
Taxes

Sales and Use Tax Fund

Other Financing Sources
Transfers

General Fund
Sewer Fund

Kxe-css of revenues over
other financing uses

Fund Balance
Beginning of year, as previously reported

Prior period a d j u s t m e n t

Beginning of year, as restated

End of year

Variance -
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (unfavorable)

$750.000 $1.000.000 IL22M89 $232.889

475,000
,250,000

725.000

475,000
250.000

725,000

475,000
250,000

725,000

25,000 275,000 507.889

103,765

56.474

160.239

668J28

232,889

The accompanying notes (Exhib i t s A-9 and B-3) are an integral part of these f inancial statements.
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Exhibit B-4
Year Ended June 30, 2007

Original

Revenues
"Intergovernmental

Expenditures
General government

Excess of revenues over expenditures

Other Financing Sources
Proceeds from issuance of debt

Excess of other f inanc ing sources-
over expenditures

Fund Balance
Beginning of year

Bnd of year

Variance -
Final Favorable

Budget Actual (unfavorable)Budget

$395,069 $395,069 $131S659 ($263,410)

131,659 93.380

(170,030)

170.030
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Note 1-Budgets

A. Budget Policy ami. Budgetary Accounting

A proposed budget is prepared and submitted by the Mayor to the City Council prior to the beginning of each fiscal
year. A budget summary and not ice of a public hearing is published with the public hearing being conducted prior
to the commencement of the budget year.

The annual operating budget, prepared on the accrual basis, covers the general, special revenue, debt service and
enterprise funds. At the end of the fiscal year, unexpended appropriations automatical ly lapse. Budget amendments
arc approved by the City Council and are included in the financial statements.

In connection wi th budget preparation, a portion of the unreserved fund balance of an i n d i v i d u a l fund may be
designated for expenditures of the subsequent year. Such designation represents the extent to which the fund
balance is used to balance the subsequent year's operating budget of that fund, as reflected in the legally adopted
budget.

B. Basis of Accountinu

All of the City's budgets are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, which is described in Note 1 to the City's
financial statements for the year ended June 30. 2007,

C. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

The- City's actual expenditures for general government, streets and .sanitat ion, publ ic safety, and social and
recreational act ivi t ies exceeded budgeted appropriations by approximately $ 1,009,893, Such amounts were funded
by proceeds from the issuance of debt dur ing 2007.

The accompanying notes (Exhibits A-9 and B-3) are an integral part of these financial statements.
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City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
General Fund

Statement of Revenues - Budget (GAAJP Basis) and Actual
Exhibit C

Year Pncleil June 30, 2007

Revenues
Taxes

Ad valorem
Telephone-
Cable television

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental

State of Louisiana
Federal
Video draw poker
Contract services

Pines
Other

Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Original
Budget

Final
Butieet Actual

Variance -
Favorable

(unfavorable)

$900,000
28,000
12,000
175,000

20,000

275,000
25,000

1 70,000

7,200
43,000

$850,000
28,000
12,000
175,000

185,000
300,000
275,000
25,000
100,000

7,200
1 1 1 ,000

$849,598
31,736
13,308
169,257

184340
318,192
357,951
1.8,858

116,583

48,648
135JI5

($402)
3,736
1.308
(5,743)

(660)
18, 192
82,951
(6,142)
16,583

41,448
24,315

K655.200 2.068.200 2,243.786 175.586

The accompanying notes ( I n h i b i t s A-9 and B-3) are ;in integral part t i f the.se f i n a n c i a l statements.
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Year Ended June 30,2007

General Government
Salaries
Payroll taxes
M u n i c i p a l retirement
Travel
Fixed asset acquisitions
Accounting
Dues and subscriptions
Consultants
Contract labor
insurance
Legal
Bui ld ing main tenance
Vehicle fuel
Office supplies
Vehicle maintenance
Publ ish ing
Telephone
Ut i l i t i e s
Other

Total general government.

Streets and Sanitation
.Salaries
Payroll taxes
Municipal retirement
Fixed asset acquis i t ions
Insurance
Contract labor
Equ ipmen t maintenance
Street and bu i ld ing maintenance
U t i l i t i e s
Vehicle fuel
'Equipment ren ta l
Supplies
Other

Total streets and sani ta t ion

(Cont inued)

Original
Budget

$253,000
9,000

37,000
12,000
10,000
90,000

7,000
40,000
10,000

1 40,700
75,000
13;000
7,500

17,000
12,000
2,250

30,000
62,000
35,500

Final
Budget

$323,000
13,000
40,000
12,000

1 1 0,000
1 55,000

11,000
15,000
40,000

150,700
75,000
23,000

7,500
25,000
16,000
2,250

30,000
62,000
48,500

Actual

$320,181
12,036
40,773

3,163
86,209

149,270
12,908
11,590
37,987

175,463
78,219
28,074
21,106
36,606
14,754
2,327

28,894
70,264
39.899

Variance -
Favorable

(unfavorable)

$2,819
964

(773)
8,837

23,791
5,730

(1,908)
3,410
2,013

(24,763)
(3,219)
(5,074)

(13,606)
(11,606)

1,246
(77)

1,106
(8,264)
8.601

862.950

785,400

158.950 L169.723

1,076.900 ,031.703

d 0.773)

426,900
15,000
66,000
15,000
99,500

50,000
19,500

1,500
37,000
40,000
10,000
5.000

436,900
27,500
46,000
65,000
78,500

201,000
70,000
47,000

3,000
37,000
15,000
30,000
20,000

431,356
29,378
33,359
26:337
77,480

213,261
71,732
54,32!

3,879
33,971
1 7,092
23,472
16,065

5,544
( J > 8 7 8 )
12,641
38,663

1,020
(12,261)

(1,732)
(7,321)

(879)
3,029

(2,092)
6,528

.... 3,935

45,197

The accompanying notes (Exhibi ts A-9 and B-3) arc an integral part of these f inancial statements.
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•Statement of Departmental Expenditures - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actua l
Exhibi t C-I

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Public Safety
Police

Salaries
Payroll taxes
M u n i c i p a l and police re t i rement
insurance
Fixed asset a cqu i s i t i ons
Travel
Clo th ing
Train ing
Office supplies
Telephone
Vehicle fuel
Vehicle maintenance
Equipment maintenance
Field supplies
Pr in t ing
Other

Fire
Salaries
Payroll taxes
Firefighters ret i rement
Insurance
Fixed asset acquisi t ions
Other

Total tire

Iota! p u b l i c safety

.Economic Development

(Cont inued)

Original
Budget

$440,000
18,500
69,000
7.3,000
10,000

1,000
1,500
1,500
6,000
8,000

38,000
12,500
2,500
6..000
1,000

15,000

Final
Budget

$440,000
19,500
49,000
72,500

5,000
1,000
1,500
4,000
4,000

1 1,000
36,000
27,500

2,500
3,000
1,000

19,500

Actual

$439,441
20,525
42,286
94,320

8,404
783

3,269
3,513

10. ,720
36,351
27,218

232
178

27,661

Variance -
Favorable

fun favorable)

$559
(1,025)
6,714

(2K820)
(3,404)

2 1 7
(1,769)

487
4,000

280
(351)
282

2,268
2,822
1,000

JM6H

703,500

150,000
5,000

28,000
2 1,000

6,000
5,800

2I5JSOO

919,300

697.000

1.50,000
5,000

28,000
21,000

714,901

144,648
6,069

16,974
22,470

The accompanying notes (Bxhih i l s A-9 and 13-3) arc an in tegra l part of these f inanc i a l statements,
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City of St. GnbHe), Louisiana
General Fund

Statement of Departmental Expenditures - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual
Exhibit C-l

Year Ended June 30, 2007

(Continued)

Social and Recreational Services
Social Services and Recreation

Salaries
Payroll taxes
Municipal retirement
Insurance
Vehicle
Supplies
Contract labor
Other

Total social services and recreation

Senior Center
Salaries
Payroll (axes
Munic ipa l retirement
Insurance
Vehicle
Supplies
Contract labor
Fixed asset acquisition
Other

Total senior center

Youth Camp
Other

Total soeial and recreational services

Debt Service

Total general fund expenditures

Original
Budget

$69,300
2,750
8,100

12,800
4,400
1,800

300
250

99,700

59,600
3,000
9,000
4,200
2.700

900

500

79,900

18.500

198.100

91.000

2,856.750

Final
Budget

$36,300
1,750
6,100

12,800
4,400
1,800

300
250

63.700

90,600
6,000
9,000
4,200
2,700

900

500

113.900

18,500

196.100

153,000

3,742.250

Actual

$37,215
757

6,048
12,105
2,528
2,053
4,308

287

65,30!

90,369
5,290
6,825
7,036
1 ,602

240
160

64,897
684

177,103

24,632

267,036

202.988

3,839,906

Variance -
Favorable

(unfavorable)

($915)
993

52
695

1,872
(253)

(4,008)
(37)

n.eon

231
710

2,175
(2,836)
1,098

660
(160)

(64,897)
084)

f 63 .203)

(6,132)

(70,936)

(49,988)

(5Ui56j

The accompanying notes (Exhibits A-9 and B-3) are an integral part of these financial statements.
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City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet
Exhibit I)

June 30, 2007

Civic Recreational Sidewalks Road

Sales
and

Use Tax
Fund

Assets
Dish and cash equivalents $172,K48

Due from other governments 85.772

Total assets 258.620

Ad Center
Valorem Capital

Tax Project

Fund Fund

Parks Improvement Improvement Total
Capital Capi ta l Capi ta l Debt Nonmajor

Project Project Project Service Governmenta l

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

$14,757 $74,89)

H.757 74,891

SI 80

180

$14,406

14.406

$277,082

85,772

362,834

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Due to oilier funds 140,000

Deferred revenue

Total liabilities 140.000

Fund Kftlance

Uiidcstenalcd 118,620

Total iiind balance 118,620

Total liabilities

JUK! fund balance 258,620

6,898

14,457

21,355

(6.598) 74,891 ISO

(6,598) 74,891 180

14.757 74.891 180

6,898

140,000

14,457

161.355

14,406 201,499

14,406 201,499

14,406 362,854

The accompanying noies (Exhibi ts A-9 and B-3) are an integral part of these financial statements.
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City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Non-Major Governmental Funds

Combining .Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Exhibit D-l

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Revenues
Taxes
Other

Expenditures
Debt service
Capital pro j eel

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other K inanc ing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers In
Operating transfers out

Tula! other financing
sources t

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures and other
Iliuincing sources (uses)

Fund Balance
Beginning of year, as resisted

KIK! of year

Sales
:ind

Use Tax
Fund

$497,60K

Ad
Valorem

Tux
Fund

$7,978

7.978

Civic Recreational Sidewalks Road
Center Parks Improvement Improvement
Capital Capital Capital Capital
Project Projects Projects Project

Fund Fund Fund Fund

497.608 7.978 f8,252) [26.516)

35,632
(500.000) [12.9*10)

33:240 (4,%2) (8,252) (26,516)

8 5.3 HO 4.962 .1.654 101,407 $1HO

1 i 8,620 - (6,598) 74.891 180

Total
Debt Nonmajor

Service Governmenta l
Fund Funds

$505..:586
10

505.596

$321,715 321,715
_80 34.848

80 321,7 i 5 356.563

330,000 365,632
(35,632) (548.572)

(35.632) 330,000 (1K3.940)

(35,702) 8,285 (33,907)

35.702 d.121 235,406

- 14,406 201.499

The accompany ing notes (Exhibits A-c) and R-3) are an integral part of these f inanc ia l statements.
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City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Sales and Use Tax Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual

Exhibit D-2
Year Ended June 30, 2007

Revenues
Taxes

Sales and use tax

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers

General Fund
Road Improvement Capital Fund
Sewer Fund

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) ofrcvcnues over
other financing sources (uses)

Fund Balance
Beginning of year

Rnd of year

Variance -
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (unfavorable)

$600.000 $600.000 $497,608 ($102,392)

500,000
36,406

100,000

636,406

(36.406)

(500,000)
(35,702)

(100.000)

(635,702)

(35,702)

(400,000)
35,632

(1 00,000)

(464,368)

33,240

85.380

18.620

100,000
71,334

171,334

68,942

The accompanying notes (Exhibi ts A-9 and B-3) arc on integral part of these financial statements.
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City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Ad Valorem Tax Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual

Exhibit D-3
Year Ended June 30, 2007

Revenues
Taxes

Ad valorem

Other Financing Uses
Transfers out

General Fund

Hxcess (deficiency) oi other financing
uses over revenues

Fund Balance
Beginning of year

Knd of year

Variance -
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (unfavorable)

$4,000 $7,978 $3,978

(4.96.2) (4,962)

4.962

The accompanying notes (Exh ib i t s A-9 and B-3) are an integral part of these f inancial statements,
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City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Civic Center Capital Project Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual

Exhibit D-4
Year Ended June 30, 2007

Final
Budget Actual

Revenues
Capital project

Expenditures
Capital out lay
Other

Excess of expenditures over revenues

Fund Balance
Beginning of year

Hncl of venr

(8,252)

1.654

Variance -
Favorable

(unfavorable)

$ -

6,898
1.354
8,252

The accompanying notes (Exhibits A-9 and B-3) are an integral part of these f i n a n c i a l statements.

60



City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Recreational Parks Capital Projects Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual

Exhibit D-5
Year Ended June 30, 2007

Expenditures
Capita] Project

Capital outlay

.Excess of revenues over expendi tures

Fund Balance
Beginning of year

find of year

Variance -
Final Favorable

Budget Actual (unfavorable)

$26,516 ($26.516)

(26,516) (26.516)

The accompanying notes (Exhibi t s A-9 and B-3) are an Integra! part of these f i n a n c i a l s tatements.
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City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Sidewalks Improvement Capital Projects Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual

Exhibit D-6
Year Ended June 30, 2007

Revenues
Grant revenue

KxpcnditurevS
Capital Project

Capital outlay

Excess (dcficiency)of revenues
over expenditures

Fund Balance
Beginning of year

End ofvear

Final
Budget

$ -

Actual

Variance -
Favorable

(unfavorable)

$ -

1.80

The accompanying notes (Rxhib i t s A-9 and Bo) are an integral part ofthese f inancial statements.



City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Road Improvement Capital Project Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance - Budget (GA.AP Basis) and Actual

Exhibit D-7
Year Ended June 30, 2007

Variance -
Final Favorable

Budget Actual (urvfavorablel
Revenues

Interest

Expenditures
Capital Project

Capital outlay

Excess of expenditures over revenues

Other Financing Sources
Transfers in
Transfers out

Exce-ss of expenditures and other f inancing
.sources over revenues

Fund Balance
Beginning of year

End of vear

$10

80

(70)

$10

(80)

(70)

(35,702)

35,702

7(1)

The accompanying notes (Exhib i t s A-9 and B-3) are an integral part o f fhese financial statements.
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City of Si. (Gabriel, Louisiana
Debt Service Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual

Exhibit l)-8
Year Ended June 30, 2007

Expenditures
Debt service

Pr inc ipa l
Debt service

Tola] expenditures

Other Financing Sources
Transfers in - ad valorem #2

Excess of other financing sources
over expenditures

Fund Balance
Beginning of year

End of year

Final
Budget

$295,250
27.062

322,312

330,000

Variance -
Favorable

Actual (unfavorable)

$277,250
44.465

321,715

330,000

8,285

597

597

The accompanying notes (Exhibits A-9 and B-3) are an integral part of these f inancia l statements.
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December 28, 2007

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting anil on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

The Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of-St. Gabriel, Louisiana 70776

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2007, which collectively comprise the City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana's basic
f i n a n c i a l statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 28, 2007, We conducted our audi t
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Slates of America and the standards
applicable (o financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
Genera! of the United States,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In p lanning and performing our audit , we considered the City of St. Gabriel Louisiana's internal
control over financial report ing as a basis for design ing our audi t ing procedures for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the f inancial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City of Si, Gabriel's internal control over f inancial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City of St. Gabriel 's in te rna l control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of in t e rna l control over financial reporting was for the l imi ted purpose described
in the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify ail deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed
below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over f inancial reporting that we consider to be
significant deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not al low management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatemcnts
on a t imely basis. A signif icant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combina t ion of control deficiencies,
that adversely affects the entity 's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, and report financial data



in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more- than a remote l ikel ihood
that a misslatement of the enti ty 's financial statements that is more than inconsequential wi l l not be prevented
or detected by the entity's internal control. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying
schedule of f inding and questioned costs as items 2007-1 through 2007-4 and 2007-6 through 2007-10 to be
significant deficiencies in in te rna l control over f inancial reporting.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results
in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatemenl of the f inancial statements wi l l not be prevented
or detected by the entity's in te rna l control.

Our consideration of the internal control over f inancia l reporting was for the l imited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the internal control
that might be significant deficiencies and , accordingly, won Id not necessarily disclose all significant deficiencies
thai are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we believe none of the significant deficiencies
described above is a material weakness,

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of ob ta in ing reasonable assurance about whether the City of St. Gabriel 's financial statements are
free of material m isstalcment, we performed tests of its compliance wi th certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed three instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standardxt which are described in the accompanying schedule of find ings and questioned
costs as findings 2007-5, 2007-1 1 and 2007-12.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and management, the
Louisiana State Legislative Auditor, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. Under Louisiana Statute 24:513, this
report is distributed by the Legislat ive Audi tor as a public document.

Yours truly,



City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Rcportable Conditions:
2007-1 Segregation of Duties

Observation: There is not sufficient segregation of duties to have effective internal control. The f i nd ing
results from the small size of the City (hat is served by a l imited accounting system. These limitations
allow no opportunity for meaningful segregation of duties. This is a prior year finding,

Recommendation: The City uses an independent CPA firm to assist their accounting department. We
recommend that duties he assigned between the CPA firm and the City personnel so that internal controls
wil l be enhanced.

Management's Response: The City assigns tasks to staff members to mitigate the risks associated with the
preparation of interim financial statements.

The City restructured the Finance department during 2006, which included utilization of its CPA firm to
perform a variety of accounting funclions. In particular, the City utilizes its CPA firm to perform the
fol lowing functions:

• Prepare employee payroll on a bi-weekly basis.
• Reconcile cash accounts monthly,
• Prepare interim financial statements and annual operating budgets,
• Prepare weekly cash position reports.

The City's f inance staff receives and prepares all da i ly cash deposits and administers accounts payable
and related vendor cash disbursements.

The City feels that th i s process has helped enhance its internal controls, since new internal control
functions were added or enhanced. Furthermore, the City plans to implement the following functions
dur ing 2008 to create a segregation of duties and further enhancement of internal control:

• Implement an internal audit function, as follows;
• To review cash disbursements for record retention and state law compliance,

particularly publ ic bid laws,
• Review accounts payable data input for accuracy and el imination of double

posting and/or payment,
• To periodically review fixed asset management efforts;

• Assist with the implementation of an automated purchase order system,
• Conduct monthly reconciliation of traffic tickets issued and collected by the City's Police

Department,

2007-2 Increase Usage of Purchase Order System

Observation; Whi l e the City maintains a purchase order system, City employees w i t h purchasing
responsibilities do not adhere to the established policy. This is a prior year finding.

Recommendation: The City should establish a uniform written policy for the use of a purchase order
system. All employees having purchasing responsibilities should be educated on the new policy and be
required to adhere to the policy,
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City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30,2007

Keportablc Conditions (Cont inued)

Management's Response: The City's departmental heads are assigned responsibility for purchasing, to
include execution of purchase orders. However, the City relies heavily on the approval process used
when disbursements are made, In par t icular , the Mayor approves all expenditures prior to the
disbursement being made, which the City believes operates effectively.

The City adopted a purchasing policy manual during 2007, but implementation has not been executed to
the satisfaction of management of the City, Furthermore, the City purchased software in late 2007 to
automate the purchase order process. As a result of these actions, the City anticipates addressing this
issue in 2008.

2007-3 Improve Collections uf Receivables

Observation: Significant amounts of sewer fees have not been collected. This is a prior year finding.

Recommendation: We recommend the following: (1) Continuance of legal action against customers that
have de l inquent accounts; (2) Pursue negotiation with Ibervi l le Parish to al low for the disconnection of
water service for delinquent accounts.

Management 's Response: The Mayor of the City has been di l igent with efforts associated with collecting
fees for providing sewer services. 'The internal efforts of the City have not produced the results desired,
which is the ul t imate collection of receivables outstanding. In any event, the City has initiated the
following steps:

1. Delinquent , sewer users have been assigned to the City attorney who is pursuing this matter for the
City. At this point, liens have been placed on the customer's property for de l inquent b i l l s . On the
other hand, the City's goal is the collection of the sewer fee which has not been forthcoming. The
City in tends to vigorously pursue this matter u n t i l an adequate resolution is achieved.

2. The City has requested assistance from the Parish of Ibcrvilie's Water District serving the east side
of the parish. At this point, an agreement was recently reached for cut-off of residential water
service by the Water District for unpaid City sewer services. The City hopes that this new
procedure current ly being implemented w i l l result in the collection of del inquent receivables.

In any event, the City is cont inuing to pursue any and all means necessary for potential improvements to
collections of receivables,

On the other hand, in October, 2007, the Mayor submitted a de l inquent list to the City Counci l for water
cut-off approval. The request was tabled by the Council as a further review of the matter was requested
by the City Counci l ,

2007-4 Traffic Ticket Receipts

Observation: The Police Department receives money in the form of cash, cashier's checks and money
orders, '['here is no reconci l ia t ion between payments received and ticket act ivi ty. This is a prior year
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City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Reportable Conditions (Continued)

Recommendation; Collections .should bo a function of the finance department of the City, We suggest the
collection be transferred to the finance department of the City. We also recommend a monthly
reconciliation be made between payments received and tickets cleared.

Management's Response: The City is satisfied with the current system. However, see 2007-1, Daring
2008, the City anticipates implementing a monthly procedure to reconcile the tickets cleared to deposits
made. Furthermore, the City anticipates implement ing software during2008 that is capable of performing
an accounting of the entire ticket issuance process and w i l l allow the City to efficiently reconcile ticket
receipts. The City anticipates resolving this matter in 2007.

2007-5 Public Bid Law

Observation: According to the Louisiana P u b l i c Bid Law, the City is required to obtain and document
at least three telephone or facsimile quotes for purchases in excess of $ 10,000 and a pubJic advertisement
must be made for purchases in excess of $20,000. On three occasions, the City purchased assets which
cost more than $10,000 for which no quotes were obtained. Two of the assets cost more than $20,000
and no p u b l i c advertisement was made as required. This is a prior year finding.

Recommendat ion; "The City should comply wi th the Louisiana Public Bid Law concerning purchases.

Management's Response: The City wi l l enhance its purchasing procedures to identify items being
purchased in excess of $10,000, so that a publ ic bid determination can be made. Personnel with
purchasing au tho r i t y have been notified regarding the above instances so that future occurrences, such
as these, can be avoided. Furthermore, the City's purchasing policy that was adopted in 2007 clearly
defined (he procedures necessary to adhere to the public bid law.

2007-6 Payroll Records

Observation: We found nineteen (19) personnel files had not been updated to reflect their new rates. There
were four (4) instances where the hours on the t ime sheets did not equal the hours that were paid to the
employee. There were three (3) instances where the employee's time sheets were not approved.

Recommendation: Personnel files should be updated to reflect current rates. Hours on lime sheets should
be reviewed to match hours paid. Time sheets should be approved.

Management's Response; The City's employee pay rates are approved each year during the process of
preparing and adopting the annua l operating budget. As a result, pay rates are approved prior to the start
of the City's fiscal year.

On the other hand, City personnel responsible for m a i n t a i n i n g employee personnel files have been made
aware of the matters disclosed. As a result, the employee files w i l l be updated as necessary.

Furthermore, time sheet discrepancies have been reviewed with the City personnel responsible for time
accumulat ion and such instances are not expected to occur in the future,



City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Keportahlc Conditions (Continued)

2007-7 Ad Valorem Taxes

Observation: Details relating to ad valorem tax payments received by the City were not being attached to
deposits making it impossible to ident i fy who has made payments for ad valorem taxes and who sti l l
owes. The City has a software package thai is designed to handle ad valorem taxes, but it is not being
uti l ized correctly, resulting in incomplete and inaccurate data.

Recommendation: The City should u t i l i ze the software package to keep up with payments made for ad
valorem taxes.

Management's Response: The City exhausted considerable amount of ' l imc and resources addressing this
matter dur ing 2007. The City has taken the following corrective action as a result of this matter:

I. The City was provided with a report from its external CPA firm de ta i l i ng observations and
recommendations. The taxpayer information assembled was provided to the City's legal counsel for
appropriate action. Such action included;

• Development of an unpaid taxpayer l is t that was reasonable and based on the information available.
• Not i f ica t ion of these ident if ied taxpayers as required by law.
• Conducted a tax sale in December 2007 for remaining unpaid taxes.
• Continued efforts wi th the taxpayers ident i f ied so that property taxes are remitted.

2. The City purchased software designed for the administrat ion of tax b i l l i n g and collection accounting.
Furthermore, the City terminated the previous Lax collector and assigned these responsibilities to the
City Clerk, The City Clerk is responsible for tax adminis t ra t ion , inc luding accounting for 2007
property tax bi l l ings and related collections.

3. In March 2008, the City w i l l review the results of 2007 tax b i l l i ng and related collections wi th the
Mayor and City Council. A detailed report wi l l be provided that will include del inquent taxpayers.

4. The City wi l l monitor 2007 tax administration closely during the next few months so thai a similar
s i tuat ion is not experienced.

2007-8 Occupational Licenses

Observation: The City is not m a i n t a i n i n g an occupational license log. As a result, payments cannot be
traced from the license log to the actual license. Wi thou t a log, the City is unable to ident i fy which
licenses arc de l inquen t . This is a prior year f inding.

Recommendation: The City should follow its policy for collection of occupational licenses.

Management Response: The City has customarily prepared an occupational license log deta i l ing all
informat ion recommended by the auditors. However, the City tax collection was responsible for the
execution of (h i s task was on leave from February through August 2007 (Sec Finding 2007-7). As a
result, the ind iv idua l performing th i s task was not aware of (he requirement.

The City wi l l prepare the log dur ing 2008 and pursue any de l inquen t licenses.
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City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended ,11111030,2007

Reportable Conditions (Continued)

2007-9 Accounts Payable and Disbursements

Observation: We noted several invoices that were entered into the accounts payable system twice. The
system is not being utilized to prevent duplicate payments. Several disbursements did not have proper
documentation.

Recommendation: Accounts payable should be entered only from invoices and they should be stamped
and dated at the time of entry. Invoices should be entered separately and not grouped. Once an invoice
is paid, it should be stamped "Paid" wi th a date indicat ing when it was paid. All invoices should be
ava i l ab le for inspection. I n d i v i d u a l receipts for purchase receipts should be attached to credit card
statements.

Management's Response: The City hired an accountant in November 2007 that wi l l be responsible for
maintaining disbursement documentation. Additionally, the accountant wi l l implement procedures to
monitor invoice data inpu t to ident i fy duplication. Addi t ional ly , cash disbursements wi l l be monitored
to el iminate any duplicate payments. F i n a l l y , the City has either received credit for duplicate payments
identified to vendors or is seeking refunds for any remaining amounts.

2007-10 Advances of Funds to Employees

Observation: The City loaned funds to employees by advancing sick and vacation pay. The City also
paid an employee's electric b i l l . According to Louisiana Const i tu t ion, Art ic le 7, Section 14, funds of the
City shal l not be loaned to an indiv idua l person.

Recommendation: The City should make no advances to employees.

Management's Response: The City w i l l begin moni tor ing leave balances on a monthly basis so that similar
instances are avoided. Furthermore, (he City reviewed leave balances as of December 2007 and the
required adjustments are being made.

2007-11 Noncompliance with Bond Covenants

Observation: The City is not in compliance with the bond covenants requir ing monthly deposits to be
made into the S inking Fund, Reserve Fund, and Contingency Fund from Net Revenues, no later than the
20fl) day of each month. The payments were being made directly from Net Revenues to the USDA and
were not being processed through the required Funds.

Recommendation: We recommend that the City adhere to all of the bond covenants set forth in the bond
resolutions.

Management's Response: The City w i l l review th is matter d u r i n g 2008 for fur ther action.



City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Reportable Conditions (Continued)

2007-12 Pledged Securities

Observation: I-.R.S. 49:321 requires that funds shall not exceed at any time the amount insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation in any one banking inst i tut ion or any one savings and loan
association unless the uninsured portion is collateralized by the pledge of securities. At June 30. 2007,
the City had $34,3 13 of cash balances in excess of FD1C insurance with one banking ins t i tu t ion .

Recommendation: Werecommend the City monitor their cash balances, and ensure that adequate coverage
is main ta ined through the use of pledged securities when amounts exceed the FD1C insurance.

Management's Response: The City has contracted the f inanc ia l inst i tut ion where the funds are maintained
for appropriate action. The City has instructed the bank to increase the level of pledged security so that
bank balances arc appropriately secured. The City w i l l reconcile the pledge report periodically to
m a i n t a i n sufficient pledged amounts.
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City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Summary of Prior Year Findings

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Rcportable Conditions:

2006-1 Segregation of Duties

Observation: There is not sufficient segregation of duties to have effective internal control. The f inding
results from the small size of the City that is served by a limited accounting system. These limitations
allow no opportunity for meaningful segregation of duties. This is a prior year finding,

Recommendation: The City uses an independent CPA firm to assist their accounting department. We
recommend that duties be assigned between the CPA firm and (he City personnel so that internal controls
w i l l be enhanced.

Management's Response: The City assigns tasks to staff members to mitigate the risks associated with the
preparation of inter im f inancia l statements. However, during 2006, the City's finance director resigned.
As a result, the City experienced turnover in this key position through the first half of its fiscal year.

The City restructured the Finance department dur ing 2006, which included ut i l izat ion of its CPA firm to
perform a variety of accounting functions, In particular, the City ut i l izes its CPA firm to perform the
following functions:

• Prepare employee payroll on a bi-weekly basis,
• Reconcile cash accounts monthly,
• Prepare interim financial statements and annua l operating budgets,
• Prepare weekly cash position reports.

The City's finance staff receives and prepares all daily cash deposits and administers accounts payable
and related vendor cash disbursements.

The City feels that th i s process has helped enhance its in ternal controls, since new in ternal control
functions were added or enhanced. Furthermore, the City is considering implementing the following
functions during 2007 to create a segregation of duties and further enhancement of internal control:

• Implement an internal audit function, as follows:
• To review cash disbursements for record retention and state law compliance,

par t icular ly public bid laws,
• Review accounts payable data inpu t for accuracy and e l imina t ion of double posting

and/or payment,
• To periodically review fixed asset management efforts;

• Assist with the implementat ion of an automated purchase order system.
• Assist with the revision of the City's policy manua l ,
• Conduct month ly reconci l ia t ion of traffic t ickets issued and collected by the City 's Police

Department .

Resolution: ' f l i ts finding repeats as current year f inding 2007-1,

2006-2 Increase Usage of Purchase Order System

Observation: Whi le the City maintains a purchase order system, City employees with purchasing
responsibili t ies do not adhere to the established policy. This is a prior year finding.



City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Summary of Prior Year Findings

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Reportable Conditions (Continued)

Recommendation: The City should establish a uniform written policy for the use of a purchase order
system, All employees having purchasing responsibilities should he educated on the new policy and
required to adhere to the policy.

Management's Response: The City's departmental heads are assigned responsibility for purchasing, to
include execution of purchase orders. However, the City relies heavily on the approval process used
when disbursements are made. In particular, the Mayor approves all expenditures prior to the
disbursement being made, which the City believes operates effectively.

On the other hand, the City plans to in i t i a t e improvements to the purchase order system, by assigning
purchasing responsibility to the department manager with the City finance director serving in a
supervisory role. Final ly , the City is reviewing computer software to automate this funct ion.

Resolution: This f inding repeats as current year f ind ing 2007-2,

2006-3 Improve Collections of Receivables

Observation: Significant amounts of sewer fees have not been collected. This is a prior year finding.

Recommendation: We recommend the following: (1) Continuance of legal action against customers that
have del inquent accounts; (2) Pursue negotiation with 1 bervi l ie Parish to allow for the disconnection of
water service for delinquent accounts.

Management's Response: The Mayor of the City has been dil igent with efforts associated with collecting
fees for providing sewer services. The internal efforts of the City have not produced the results desired,
which is the u l t imate collection of receivables outstanding. In any event, the City has in i t ia ted the
fol lowing steps:

1. Delinquent sewer users have been assigned to the City attorney who is pursuing this matter for
the City. At this point, liens have been placed on the customer's property for delinquent bi l ls .
On the other hand, the City's goal is the collection of the sewer fee which has not been
forthcoming. The City intends to vigorous!)' pursue th is matter u n t i l an adequate resolution is
achieved,

2, The City has requested assistance from the Parish of Ibcrvi lie's Water District serving the east
side of the parish. At this point, an agreement was recently reached for cut-off of residential
water service by the Water District for unpaid City sewer services. The City hopes that this
new procedure current ly being implemented w i l l result in the collection of d e l i n q u e n t
receivables.

Jn any event, the City is c o n t i n u i n g to pursue any and all means necessary for potential improvements to
collections of receivables.

Resolution: This f inding repeats as current year f i nd ing 2007-3.



City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Summary of Prior Year Findings

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Reportable Conditions (Continued)

2006-4 Traffic Ticket Receipts

Observation: The Police Department receives money in the form of cash, cashier's checks or money
orders which are made payable to the Iberville Parish Sheriffs Office. A police department employee
accumulates the payments and calls an employee of the Sheriffs Office to pick them up. The police
department has a system which requires the Sheriffs department employee to sign for these items. There
is no reconciliation between payments received and tickets cleared. This is a prior year finding.

Recommendation: The system the Police Department is using is appropriate in form but the funct ion of
collections should he a function of the finance department of the City. We suggest the colled ion system
currently in place be transferred to the finance department of the City. We recommend the Police
Department do a monthly reconcil iat ion between payments received and tickets cleared.

Management's Response: The City is satisfied with the current system. However, see 2006-1. During
2007, the City anticipates implementing a monthly procedure to reconcile the tickets cleared to deposits
made. The Cily anticipates resolving this matter in 2007.

Resolution: This f i nd ing repeats as current year f ind ing 2007-4.

2006-5 Public Bid Law

Observation: According to the Louisiana Public Bid Law, the City is required to obtain and document
at least three telephone or facsimile quotes for purchases in excess of $10,000 and a public advertisement
must be made for purchases in excess of .$20,000. On four occasions, the City purchased assets which
cost more than $ 1 0.000 for which no quotes were obtained. One of the assets cost more than $20,000 and
no p u b l i c advertisement was made as required. This is a prior year f inding,

Recommendation: The City should comply with the Louisiana Public Bid Law concerning purchases.

Management's Response; The City considers these to be isolated matters, 'flic City w i l l enhance its
purchasing procedures to ident i fy items being purchased in excess of $10,000, so that a public bid
determination can be made. Personnel w i th purchasing au thor i ty wi l l be not i f ied regarding the above
instances so that fu ture occurrences, such as these, can be avoided.

One item related to the purchase of a used vehicle that represented an attractive purchase for the City.
Another item related to the purchase of bu i ld ing material for the construction of a metal storage bui ld ing
at the City's communi ty center. The Cily constructed this faci l i ty with its own personnel that was
attract ive economically for the City. The City considered this to be a pub l i c works project and did not
consider it as a pub l i c bid item.

Final ly , (he Cily entered into a lease that it considered to be an operating lease. The City did not believe
this item required public bid since it was renting the i tem. Furthermore, (he Cily considers (he use of
these leasing programs as practical for the City in managing its heavy equipment needs.

Resolution: This f inding repeats as current year f ind ing 2007-5.
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City of Si. Gabriel, Louisiana
Summary of Prior Year Findings

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Rcportable Conditions (Continued)

2006-6 Fixed Asset Management

Observation: We were unable to locate a Dell computer dur ing our test of the Fixed asset inventory.

Recommendation: The fixed asset inventory l is t ing should be maintained and updated on a regular basis.

Management's Response: The City wil l review fixed asset inventory records and remove surplus/obsolete
items, such as the one old computer identified by the City's auditors. The item identified was a donated
piece of equipment. Furthermore, dur ing 2006, federal officials from FEMA where housed at City Hai l
on a 24 hour basis for the majority of the fiscal year. Certain areas of the City's facilities that were
previously used for equipment storage where converted to sleeping quarters. As a result, certain obsolete
equipment, such as the item identified, were moved or discarded to accommodate housing these
individuals ,

The City considers this matter to be as an isolated incident as vigorous efforts are made to manage
property. On the other hand, the City wil l continue to take an annual physical inventory as required by
state law and wil l implement a procedure to ident i fy older items that should be removed from the l is t ing
in an appropriate fashion, This matter w i l l be resolved in 2007,

Resolution: This f inding was resolved in the current year.

2006-7 Travel Policy

Observation: Travel policy states a maximum reimbursement amount for meals to be paid to employees
and council members that travel. The mayor is being reimbursed for actual meal expenditures that exceed
the amounts staled in the travel expense reimbursement policy.

Recommendation: The Town should adhere to its travel policy.

Management's Response: The City follows policy used by the State of Louisiana's employees and
considers its current accounting and disbursement practice as appropriate. Although the City's travel
policy staled a reimbursement amount, the travel policy is outdated and wil l be revised to coincide with
State practices and current City practices. The City policy handbook is approaching 10 years in age and
is considered outdated. As a result, the entire policy manual wi l l be reviewed and appropriate changes
will be made. The City does not consider this matter to be a major f inding, but anticipates resolution of
th is matter during 2007.

Resolution: This f inding was resolved in the current year.

2006-8 Occupational Licenses

Observation: The City is not following its policy for del inquent payment of occupational, beer and l iquor
licenses. One company in the City of St. Gabriel has not paid any of these licenses, and continues to
remain open and sell alcohol. This is a prior year f i n d i n g ,



City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Summary of Prior Year Findings

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Rcportable Conditions (Continued)

Recommendation: The City should follow its policy for collection of occupational licenses.

Management Response: The City identified the company and is making efforts to collect these unpaid
occupational licenses. The City has contacted this company on numerous occasions to collect the unpaid
amounts. Additionally, the City is ut i l iz ing its legal counsel to address this matter,

2006-9 Accounts Payable and Disbursements

Observation: During our aud i t , we noted several invoices that were entered into the accounts payable
system twice. The system is not being uti l ized to prevent duplicate payments. We also noted seven
invoices that were paid twice and of the seven, two were for travel reimbursement expenses. Several
disbursements did not have proper documentation.

Recommendation: Accounts payable should be entered only from invoices and they should be stamped
and dated at the time of entry, invoices should be entered separately and not grouped. Once an invoice
is paid, it should be stamped "Paid" with a date indicating when it was paid. All invoices should be
avai lable for inspection.

Management's Response: The CPA firm that assists (he City wi l l monitor accounts payable to try to
el iminate this issue. See 2006-1. Furthermore, the City w i l l implement procedures to monitor invoice
data input to identify dupl ica t ion . Additionally, cash disbursements wi l l be monitored to eliminate any
duplicate payments. Finally, the City has either received credit for duplicate payments identified to
vendors or is seeking refunds for any remaining amounts, The City is working to ensure that proper
documentation is maintained.

Resolution; This f inding repeats as current year finding 2007-9.

2006-10 Overtime Policy and Payment

Observation: We noted five employees that were paid double time for overtime hours worked. The City
of St. Gabriel 's policy states that employees should only be reimbursed time and a half for overtime hours
worked.

Recommendation: The City should adhere to its overtime policy.

Management's Response: The City intends to revise its overtime policy to allow payment of double time
for holidays worked which is a common practice. The overtime related to hurricane relief efforts dur ing
2005 and 2006 which was required in the City contract with FEMA. Addi t ional ly , all overtime was
approved by the City Council when such efforts were necessary to assist in disaster relief efforts. During
2005 and 2006, the City served as a central point for hous ing federal officials on a 24 hour basis and as
a central morgue. The assistance required extraordinary efforts on the part of the City of-St. Gabriel as
a government as well as a community.

Resolut ion: This f ind ing was resolved in the current year.
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City of St. Gabriel, Louisiana
Summary of Prior Year Findings

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Rcportablc Conditions (Continued)

2006-11 Noncompliance with Bond Covenants

Observation: The City is not in compliance with the bond covenants requir ing monthly deposits to be
made into the Sinking Fund, Reserve Fund, and Contingency Fund from Net Revenues, no later than the
20"' day of each month. The payments were being made directly from Net Revenues to the USDA and
were not being processed through (he required Funds.

Recommendation: We recommend that the City adhere to all of the bond covenants set forth in the bond
resolutions,

Management's Response: The City committed to comply with the bond covenants as specified in the bond
resolutions. Subsequent to the year end, the City initiated procedures to comply with the covenants,

Resolution: This f ind ing repeats as current year finding 2007-1 1,

2006-12 Pledged Securities

Observation; L.R.S. 49:321 requires tha t funds shal l not exceed at any rime the amount insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation in any one banking ins t i tu t ion or any one savings and loan
association unless the uninsured portion is collaleralized by the pledge of securities. At June 30, 2007,
the City had $623,280 of cash balances in excess of FDIC insurance with one banking insti tution.

Recommendation: We recommend the City monitor the i r cash balances, and ensure that adequate
coverage is main ta ined through the use of pledged securities when amounts exceed the FDIC insurance.

Management's Response; Subsequent to year end, the City obtained pledged securities for amounts
exceeding the FDIC l imit .

Resolution: This finding repeats as current year f inding 2007-12.
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